
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
Paul Casey 

City Administrator 
 Gregg Hart 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Frank Hotchkiss 
Cathy Murillo 
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

MARCH 24, 2015 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need auxiliary aids or services or staff assistance to attend or participate 
in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s Office at 564-5305.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will usually enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. Specialized services, such as sign language 
interpretation or documents in Braille, may require additional lead time to arrange. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

3/24/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Begins 
 5:00 p.m. - Recess 
 6:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Reconvenes 
 
 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 

AFTERNOON SESSION 
 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the adjourned regular meeting of March 9, 2015, and the regular meeting of 
March 10, 2015. 
  

2. Subject:  Records Destruction For Parks And Recreation Department 
(160.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records 
Held by the Parks and Recreation Department in the Administration, Parks, and 
Recreation Divisions. 



 

3/24/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 

3. Subject:  Resolution For Grant Application For Las Positas Creek 
Restoration Project (540.14) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Application for a 
$1,000,000 Urban Streams Restoration Program Grant and Determining the 
Appropriate Environmental Impact Document; Conditionally Accepting the Grant 
if Offered, Subject to City Council Approval of the Final Language of the Grant 
Contract; and Designating the Project Representative, Contract Manager, and 
Fiscal Agent. 
  

4. Subject:  Adoption Of Resolutions Required For Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund Loan Funding Of The Desalination Plant (540.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Pledging the Water Fund Net Revenue to Payment of the 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Financing Agreement; and 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Stating the City's Intent to Reimburse Expenditures Paid 
Prior to Either the Issuance of Obligations or the Approval by the State 
Water Resources Control Board of the Project Funds for Reactivating the 
Charles E. Meyer Desalination Plant. 

 
 

5. Subject: Increase In Professional Services Contract Authority With Godbe 
Research For Polling Services (530.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council increase the City Administrator's negotiating 
authority to execute a not-to-exceed $41,000 contract for professional services 
with Godbe Research to conduct a comprehensive opinion poll related to a 
possible revenue generating ballot measure. 
  

6. Subject:  February 2015 Investment Report (260.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the February 2015 Investment Report. 
  

7. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements For The Seven 
Months Ended January 31, 2015 (250.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial 
Statements for the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2015. 
  



 

3/24/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
8. Subject:  Appropriation Of Human Services Grant Funds For Youth 

Apprenticeship And Santa Barbara Arts Alliance Programs (570.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council increase appropriations and estimated revenues 
in the Fiscal Year 2015 Parks and Recreation Department General Fund, in the 
amount of $15,000, for two Human Services Grant awards. 
  

9. Subject:  Purchase Order For City Hall Well Repair (540.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve a maintenance and repair Purchase 
Order in the amount of $102,164.56 to PCL Construction, Inc., for repairs made 
to the City Hall Well. 
  

10. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Westside Center Bathroom 
Renovation Project (320.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council award a contract with Kinyon Construction, Inc., 
in their lowest acceptable bid amount of $185,175 for construction of the 
Community Development Block Grant Westside Center Bathroom Renovation, 
Bid No. 3769, and authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract 
and approve expenditures up to $18,517.50 (10 percent) to cover any cost 
increases that may result from contract change orders for extra work. 
  

11. Subject:  Contract Amendment For Construction Management And 
Inspection Services For The Gibraltar Conduit Hydroelectric Plant (540.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize an amendment to Contract No. 24,715 
with Rockwell Construction Services, LLC, in an amount of $10,960 for additional 
construction management and inspection services for recommissioning the 
Gibraltar Conduit Hydroelectric Plant, raising the overall contract amount to 
$55,178. 
  

12. Subject:  Amendment To Professional Services Agreement With Ruby 
Carrillo For Accounting Services (210.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the Finance Director to 
execute a First Amendment to Agreement No. 21400186, Professional Service 
Contract with Ruby Carrillo for Accounting Services, to increase the agreement 
by $30,000 for a total of $50,000. 
  



 

3/24/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
13. Subject:  Resolution Denying The Appeal Of The Single Family Design 

Board Decision Regarding 1912 Mission Ridge Road (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Denying the Appeal and Upholding the 
Decision of the Single Family Design Board Granting Project Design Approval for 
Additions to the Residence at 1912 Mission Ridge Road. 
  

14. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Appeal Of Single Family 
Design Board Approvals For 2405 State Street 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Set the date of April 21, 2015, at 2:00 p.m. for hearing the appeal filed by 

Jim and Debbie Arnesen of the Single Family Design Board Project 
Design and Final Approvals for property owned by Dan Underwood and 
located at 2405 State Street, Assessor's Parcel No. 025-071-012, E-3 
One-Family Residence Zone, General Plan Designation: Low Density 
Residential.  The project proposes construction of a 2,101 square-foot, 
two-story single-family residence with an attached 505 square-foot, two-
car garage along with other improvements, and it includes 318 cubic yards 
of cut and fill grading.  The proposed total of 2,606 square feet on a 
vacant lot is 85% of the maximum floor-to-lot area ratio; and 

B. Set the date of April 20, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. for a site visit to the property 
located at 2405 State Street. 

 
 
NOTICES 

15. The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 19, 2015, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

16. Cancellation of the regular City Council meeting of March 31, 2015. 

17. Receipt of communication advising of vacancy created on the Water Commission 
with the resignation of Russell Ruiz; the vacancy will be part of the next City 
Advisory Groups recruitment. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 



 

3/24/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

18. Subject:  Update On Downtown Electrical Infrastructure Reliability Issues 
From Southern California Edison (380.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a presentation from Southern California 
Edison on electrical infrastructure reliability issues in the Downtown Corridor 
area. 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

19. Subject:  Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of Santa Barbara 
Museum Of Natural History Conditional Use Permit Amendment (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal of Mark and Lauren Carey, 
upholding the Planning Commission's approval of the Conditional Use Permit 
Amendment and Parking Modification for the Santa Barbara Museum of Natural 
History (2559 Puesta del Sol); and direct staff to return with Decision and 
Findings, including revised conditions of approval. 
  

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
RECESS 
EVENING SESSION  



 

3/24/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 

EVENING SESSION 
 
 
RECONVENE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

20. Subject:  Setting Geographic Boundaries For District Elections (110.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive a report from Doug Johnson, President of National Demographics 

Corporation, regarding the results of the City public outreach efforts 
related to district elections and drawing geographic boundaries for 
electoral districts; 

B. Hold a public hearing pursuant to California Elections Code Section 10010 
to consider a proposal to establish district boundaries; 

C. Provide direction to the City Attorney and the City Administrator on 
establishing electoral district boundaries; and 

D. Consider adoption of A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Establishing Single Member Districts for the Election of 
Councilmembers. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



3/9/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING 
March 9, 2015 

1912 MISSION RIDGE ROAD 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 1:40 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Gregg Hart, Frank Hotchkiss, Cathy Murillo, 
Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator’s Office Supervisor Jennifer Jennings. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
NOTICES 
 
The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 5, 2015, posted this agenda in the Office of the 
City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City Hall, and 
on the Internet. 
 
SITE VISIT 
 
Subject:  1912 Mission Ridge Road 
 
Recommendation:  That Council make a site visit to the property located at 1912 
Mission Ridge Road, which is the subject of an appeal hearing scheduled for March 10, 
2015, at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Discussion: 
 Staff led Councilmembers on a walk around the project site and answered 

questions about the proposed development. 
 
 

MAR 24 2015 #1 



3/9/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 2:11 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  GWEN PEIRCE, CMC 
MAYOR  CITY CLERK SERVICES MANAGER 
 



3/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
March 10, 2015 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (The Finance 
Committee and Ordinance Committee, which ordinarily meet at 12:30 p.m., did not meet 
on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco (2:05 p.m.), Gregg Hart, Frank Hotchkiss, 
Cathy Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator Paul Casey, City Attorney Ariel Pierre Calonne, City 
Clerk Services Manager Gwen Peirce. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Robert Johns; Robert Burke; Melody Joy Baker; Michael Baker, United Boys 
and Girls Clubs; Kenneth Loch; Phil Walker; Tom Widroe, City Watch. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 1 – 4) 
 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Murillo/Hart to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended. 

Vote: 
Unanimous voice vote. 

 
 
 

MAR 24 2015 #1 



3/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

1. Subject: Children's And Main Library Furniture Sole Source Agreements 
(570.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Library Director to execute a sole source award of a 

purchase order in the amount of $93,085, with $9,309 available for extra 
services, to Yamada Enterprises for a custom furniture purchase for the 
Children's Library and main floor at 40 E. Anapamu Street; 

B. Authorize the Library Director to execute a sole source award of a 
purchase order in the amount of $60,666, with $6,066 available for extra 
services, to K.I. for a custom furniture purchase for the Children's Library 
and main floor at 40 E. Anapamu Street; and 

C. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues in the General Fund 
Capital Outlay Fund by $169,126 funded from a $101,607 transfer from 
the Santa Barbara Public Library Foundation for Children's Library 
furniture, and $67,519 from the Peggy Maximus Trust for main floor 
furniture and extra services that may result from necessary changes. 

 
Speaker: 
 Staff:  Library Services Manager Margaret Esther. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (March 10, 2015, report from the Library 
Director). 

2. Subject:  Authorize Payment Of Attorney Fees To The Firm Of Cappello & 
Noël, LLP Relating To Banales, et al., v. City of Santa Barbara (110.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the payment of $599,500 to the law firm of Cappello & Noël, 

LLP for the cost of attorneys’ fees relating to Banales, et al., v. City of 
Santa Barbara; and 

B. Increase appropriations from General Fund reserves to the City Attorney's 
Office in the amount of $500,000 to partially cover the settlement costs, 
with the remaining $100,000 to be funded from the balance of 
appropriations established in the City Attorney's Office for litigation costs 
in the Banales case. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (March 10, 2015, report from the City 
Attorney). 

 

 

 

 



3/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

NOTICES 

3. The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 5, 2015, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet. 

4. Receipt of communication advising of vacancy created on the Police and Fire 
Commission with the resignation of Diego Torres-Santos; the vacancy will be part 
of the next City Advisory Groups recruitment. 

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

5. Subject:  Stage Two Drought Update (540.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive an update on the status of the current 
drought and related efforts. 
  
Documents: 

- March 10, 2015, report from the Public Works Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 

- Staff: Water Resources Manager Joshua Haggmark, Acting Water 
Conservation Coordinator Madeline Ward, Acting Water Resources 
Supervisor Kelley Dyer. 

- Members of the Public:  Ally Arganbright. 
 
Discussion: 

Staff’s presentation included current rainfall totals and the outlook for 
continued drought conditions, the community’s response to the need for 
conservation, the outlook for water supplies, including State and 
supplemental water supplies, drought response capital projects, and 
features of the City’s Water Conservation Program.  Councilmembers’ 
questions were answered. 

 

 

 

 

 



3/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

6. Subject:  Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Water Rate Increases For 
Fiscal Year 2016 (540.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hold a public hearing, as required by State law, regarding proposed rate 

increases for water services for Fiscal Year 2016; and 
B. Provide direction to staff regarding any changes to the proposed Fiscal 

Year 2016 water rates. 
 
Documents: 

- March 10, 2015, report from the Public Works Director. 
- PowerPoint Presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
- Letters opposing the water rate increases: 

- January 23, 2015, from S. LA Pointe Brookes. 
- January 25, 2015, from Forrest Wilde. 
- January 26, 2015, from Elaine Gurrola. 
- January 27, 2015, from Tom Thomas. 
- January 27, 2015, petition from Dorothy Littlejohn. 
- January 29, 2015, from Casey J. Crawford. 
- January 31, 2015, from Elvira Maxwell. 
- February 4, 2015, from Brian Lindner. 
- February 7, 2015, from George and Susan Larson, Douglas Furse. 
- February 11, 2015, from Dr. Kiumarss Nasseri. 
- February 18, 2015, from Carol J. Knox. 
- February 19, 2015, from Robert Mangus and Steven Little, 

Westwood Hills Avocado Alliance. 
- February 21, 2015, from Chris and Susan Dahlstrom. 
- February 23, 2015, from Harry Sherwood, Robert Welby, Ritz 

Brunello, Bruce T. Hayashi, Peter Kornbluth, D.L. Beeks, William 
Bertka, Randall Wade, Carmelo Tasca, William Stoltz, William 
Chapin, Mitch Telson, Maria C. DiMaggio, Steven Little, Michael 
Silva, Philip and Jeanette Condon, Joseph and Elaine Webster, 
Jimmie and Elizabeth Bray, Kandace Illgen, Bret Stone. 

- February 24, 2015, from Miriam Michaelis. 
- March 1, 2015, from Nancy Rikalo and Steven Kent. 
- March 3, 2015, from Richard Lamb. 
- March 4, 2015, from Nigel and Christine Bennett. 
- March 5, 2015, from Barry Semler, Rancho Primavera; Aaron T. 

Semler, Sycamore Creek Estates; Assad Mora. 
- March 6, 2015, from Peter R. Preiswerk. 
- March 9, 2015, from Tim Owens. 
- March 10, 2015, from James Dyer, George and Elaine Kitagawa, 

Don Galloway, Jerry Shalhoob, Harriett Sharp. 
(Cont’d) 

 



3/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

6. (Cont’d) 
 

Public Comment Opened: 
   2:45 p.m. 
 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  Water Resources Manager Joshua Haggmark, Acting Water 
Resources Supervisor Kelley Dyer, City Attorney Ariel Calonne, Public 
Works Director Rebecca Bjork. 

 - Members of the Public:  Julia Bennett; Dorothy Dent; Steve Little, 
Westwood Hills Avocado Association; Tom Widroe, City Watch; Randy 
Wade; Brad Smith; Tom Bellamore, California Avocado Commission; Ken 
Melban, California Avocado Commission; Bob Mangus, California 
Avocado Growers; Barry Semler, California Avocado Growers; Ally 
Arganbright; Kira Redmond, Santa Barbara Channelkeeper; Lindsey. 

 
Public Comment Closed: 

3:41 p.m. 
 
Discussion: 

Acting Water Resources Supervisor Kelley Dyer provided information on 
the rate study and the potential costs for the desalination plant, as well as 
an overview of the proposed new rate structure.  Public Works Director 
Rebecca Bjork provided background on the history of Council priorities in 
regards to water rates, specifically relating to agricultural rates.  
Councilmembers’ questions were answered. 

 
RECESS 
 
3:59 p.m. – 4:08 p.m. 

7. Subject:  Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Approval Of Additions To 
Residence At 1912 Mission Ridge Road (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal of Susan M. Basham of Price, 
Postel & Parma, LLP, agent for various neighbors, and uphold the Single Family 
Design Board decision to grant Project Design Approval for additions to an 
existing single-family residence. 
  
Documents: 

- March 10, 2015, report from the Community Development Director. 
- PowerPoint Presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
- PowerPoint Presentation prepared and made by Jeff Shelton, Architect for 

the Applicant. 
- March 10, 2015, letters from Trevor Martinson and the Riviera 

Association. 
(Cont’d) 



3/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

7. (Cont’d) 
 
Public Comment Opened: 
   4:09 p.m. 

 
Speakers: 
 - Staff:  Senior Planner II Jaime Limon, City Attorney Ariel Calonne, 

Assistant City Attorney Scott Vincent. 
 - Single Family Design Board:  Chair Fred Sweeney. 
 - Appellants:  Susan Basham, Price, Postel & Parma, LLP; Christopher 

Price, Price, Postel & Parma, LLP; Rinaldo Brutoco; Roger Bacon. 
 - Applicant:  Jeff Shelton, Architect; Craig and Jane Morrison. 
 - Members of the Public: Jeannine Daniel, Tiffany Doré, Patrick McKenna, 

Robert Fulmer, Ken Saxon, Trevor Martinson, Pat Fulmer, Randy Mudge, 
Tom Jennings. 

 
Public Comment Closed: 

5:47 p.m. 
 
Motion: 

Councilmembers White/Hotchkiss to deny the appeal of Susan M. 
Basham of Price, Postel & Parma, LLP, representing Roger and Stefanie 
Bacon and Rinaldo and Lalla Brutoco, and uphold the Single Family 
Design Board decision to grant Project Design Approval for additions to an 
existing single-family residence, with the additional conditions that the 
Single Family Design Board review the privacy issues on the north 
elevation and west elevation of the proposed project, specifically review 
the use of translucent glass, consider reductions in window size, and on 
the west elevation, consider alterations to the balcony to maximize privacy 
for the neighbors to the west.  

Vote: 
Majority voice vote (Noes:  Mayor Schneider).  

 
RECESS 
 
Mayor Schneider recessed the meeting at 6:15 p.m. in order for the Council to 
reconvene in closed session for Agenda Item No. 8.  She stated no reportable action is 
anticipated.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

CLOSED SESSIONS 
 
8. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristine Schmidt, 
Administrative Services Director, regarding negotiations with the Fire 
Management Association, Supervisors Association, General Bargaining Unit, and 
regarding salaries and fringe benefits for certain unrepresented management and 
confidential employees. 
 Scheduling: Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 Report: None anticipated 
  

 Documents: 
  March 10, 2015, report from the Administrative Services Director. 
 
 Time: 
  6:15 p.m. – 6:30 p.m.  
 
 No report made. 
 
RECESS 
EVENING SESSION  

 
6:30 p.m. – 6:39 p.m. 
Mayor Schneider presiding. 
Councilmembers present:  Francisco, Hart, Hotchkiss, Murillo, Rowse, White, Mayor 
Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None.  
Staff present:  City Administrator Casey, City Attorney Calonne, City Clerk Services 
Manager Peirce. 
EVENING SESSION  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Karin van Hock, Las Positas Tennis Group. 

 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS (CONT’D) 

PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

9. Subject:  Options To Improve Golf Course Financial Sustainability (570.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve a proposal for the General Fund to refinance $1,169,651 of Golf 

Fund debt at three percent interest over a 20-year term; 
B. Confirm prior Council direction to continue with the same golf course 

operating model using City employee maintenance; and                  
(Cont’d) 



3/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

9. (Cont’d) 
 

C. Direct staff to enhance golf marketing efforts and proceed with securing 
pro shop and restaurant concession agreements which would be in effect 
July 1, 2016. 

 
Documents: 

- March 10, 2015, report from the Parks and Recreation Director. 
- PowerPoint Presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
- March 10, 2015, letter from Bryant Henson. 

 Speakers: 
- Staff:  Parks and Recreation Director Nancy Rapp, Parks and Recreation 

Business Analyst Mark Sewell, Acting Assistant City Administrator/ 
Finance Director Bob Samario. 

- Parks and Recreation Commission:  Chair Lesley Wiscomb. 
- Members of the Public:  Tom Widroe, City Watch; Gretchen Ostergren; 

Maureen Masson; Jeff Hewes; Tony Vassallo; Beebe Longstreet; David 
Niles; Cynthia Goena, Service Employees International Union (SEIU) 
Local 620; Bonnie Raisin; Joe Rution; Craig Kessler, Southern California 
Golf Association; Clay Cole; Marilyn Freeman; Patricia Watkins. 

 
 Motion: 
  Councilmembers Hart/Murillo to approve Recommendations A, B and C. 
 Vote: 
 Failed to carry by voice vote (Ayes:  Councilmembers Hart, Murillo, Mayor 

Schneider; Noes: Councilmembers Francisco, Hotchkiss, Rowse, White).  
  

Motion: 
 Mayor Schneider/Councilmember Rowse to approve Recommendations A 

and C. 
 Vote: 
  Unanimous voice vote.  
 
 Motion: 
 Councilmembers Francisco/Rowse to direct staff to pursue contracting for 

golf course maintenance services, following living wage requirements. 
Vote: 
 Majority voice vote (Noes: Councilmembers Hart, Murillo, Mayor 

Schneider). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 8:29 p.m. in memory of Santa Barbara City 
Firefighter Daniel Corrigan. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  GWEN PEIRCE, CMC 
MAYOR  CITY CLERK SERVICES MANAGER 
 



Agenda Item No.  2 
 

File Code No.  160.06 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  March 24, 2015 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Administration Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Records Destruction For Parks And Recreation Department 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records Held by the Parks and Recreation 
Department in the Administration, Parks, and Recreation Divisions. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-006 on February 11, 2014, approving the 
City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures Manual.  The 
Manual contains the records retention and disposition schedules for all City 
departments.  The schedules are a comprehensive listing of records created or 
maintained by the City, the length of time each record should be retained, and the legal 
retention authority.  If no legal retention authority is cited, the retention period is based 
on standard records management practice. 
 
Pursuant to the Manual, the Parks and Recreation Director submitted a request for 
records destruction to the City Clerk Services Manager to obtain written consent from 
the City Attorney.  The City Clerk Services Manager agreed that the list of records 
proposed for destruction conformed to the retention and disposition schedules.  The 
City Attorney has consented in writing to the destruction of the proposed records. 
 
The Parks and Recreation Director requests the City Council to approve the destruction 
of the Parks and Recreation Department records in the Administration, Parks, and 
Recreation Divisions listed on Exhibit A of the proposed Resolution, without retaining a 
copy. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Records Destruction For Parks And Recreation Department 
March 24, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
Under the City's sustainability program, one of the City's goals is to increase recycling 
efforts and divert waste from landfills.  The Citywide Records Management Program 
outlines that records approved for destruction be recycled, reducing paper waste. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Karla M. Megill, Executive Assistant 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA RELATING TO THE DESTRUCTION OF 
RECORDS HELD BY THE PARKS AND RECREATION 
DEPARTMENT IN THE ADMINISTRATION, PARKS, AND 
RECREATION DIVISIONS 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-006 on February 11, 2014, 
approving the City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures 
Manual; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures 
Manual contains the records retention and disposition schedules for all City 
departments.  The records retention and disposition schedules are a comprehensive 
listing of records created or maintained by the City, the length of time each record 
should be retained, and the legal retention authority.  If no legal retention authority is 
cited, the retention period is based on standard records management practice; 
 
WHEREAS, Government Code section 34090 provides that, with the approval of the 
City Council and the written consent of the City Attorney, the head of a City department 
may destroy certain city records, documents, instruments, books or papers under the 
Department Head’s charge, without making a copy, if the records are no longer needed; 
 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Director submitted a request for the destruction 
of records held by the Parks and Recreation Department to the City Clerk Services 
Manager to obtain written consent from the City Attorney.   A list of the records, 
documents, instruments, books or papers proposed for destruction is attached hereto as 
Exhibit A and shall hereafter be referred to collectively as the “Records”; 
 
WHEREAS, the Records do not include any records affecting title to real property or 
liens upon real property, court records, records required to be kept by statute, records 
less than two years old, video or audio recordings that are evidence in any claim or 
pending litigation, or the minutes, ordinances or resolutions of the City Council or any 
City board or commission; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk Services Manager agrees that the proposed destruction 
conforms to the City’s retention and disposition schedules; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Attorney consents to the destruction of the Records; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara finds and determines that the 
Records are no longer required and may be destroyed. 
 
 



 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA that the Parks and Recreation Director, or her designated representative, is 
authorized and directed to destroy the Records without retaining a copy. 



EXHIBIT A 

 

PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
 

ADMINISTRATION DIVISION 
Records Series Date(s) 
Administrative Staff Meeting Agendas and Minutes 2012 
Camp Registration Forms 2009 
Complaints 2012 
Contracts and Agreements  2008-2009 
Field and Facility Rental and Reservation Files Through 2009 
General Administrative Files 2010-2012 
Memberships in Associations, Societies, and Committees 2009 
Routine Correspondence 2012 
Special Events Files Jan – Dec 2006 
Staff Working Files 2006-2012 
Training Records 2009 
Travel Expense Records Aug – Dec 2007 

 
PARKS DIVISION 

Records Series Date(s) 
Incident and Injury Reports, and Safety Information Jan 2012 – Jan 2013 
Park Ranger Incident Reports Mar 2010 – Feb 2012 
Routine Correspondence Jan 2011– Dec 2012 

 
RECREATION DIVISION 

Records Series Date(s) 
Active Adults 
Arts and Crafts Show Files  

Administrative Records 2006 – Jun 2013 
Applications and Permits 2006 –2008 

Contracts and Agreements Jul 2009 – Jun 2010 
Credit Card Transaction Records Jul 2012 – Jun 2013 
Routine Correspondence Jul 2012 – Jun 2013 
Recreation Program Files  

Accounting Records Jul 2012 – Jun 2013 
Registration Jul 2009 – Jun 2010 
Membership 2009 
Facility Maintenance and Inspection Jul 2007 – Jun 2008 
Independent Contractor/Instructor Files 2007 –2009 

Aquatics and Sports  
Recreation Program Files  



EXHIBIT A 

 

Accounting Records Jul 2008 – Jun 2011 
Independent Contractor/Instructor Files Jul 2006 – Jun 2008 

Field and Facility Rental and Registration Files Jul 2007 – Jun 2008 
Facilities & Special Events 
Field and Facility Rental and Registration Files 2009 
Special Event Files 2007 
Neighborhood & Outreach Services 
Parks and Recreation Department Files 2002-2009 
Credit Card Transaction Records 2012 – Oct 2013 
Grant Files 2002-2010 
Recreation Program Files  

Accounting Records 2009-2012 
Field and Facility Rental and Registration Files 2007-2009 
Staff Working Papers 2009 – 2013  
Tennis Section 
Recreation Program Files    

Accounting Records Jul 2008 – Jun 2009 
Registration Jul 2008 – Jun 2009 
Independent Contractor/Instructor Jul 2008 – Jun 2009 
Membership Jul 2008 – Jun 2009 
Staff Training Jul 2008 – Jun 2009 

Field and Facility Rental and Reservation Files Jul 2008 – Jun 2009 
Youth Activities 
Camp Registration Files Fiscal Years 1994, 2000 

– 2005 
Recreation Program Files    

Registration Fiscal Years 2000 – 
2005  
Jul 2009– Jun 2010 
 

Training Records Fiscal Year 2003 
Incident and Injury Reports Jul 2012 – Jun 2013 

Routine Correspondence Fiscal Year 2005 
 



Agenda Item No.  3 
File Code No.  540.14 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Creeks Division, Parks and Recreation Department  
 
SUBJECT: Resolution For Grant Application For Las Positas Creek Restoration 

Project  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Approving the Application for a $1,000,000 Urban Streams Restoration 
Program Grant and Determining the Appropriate Environmental Impact Document; 
Conditionally Accepting the Grant, if Offered, Subject to City Council Approval of the 
Final Language of the Grant Contract; and Designating the Project Representative, 
Contract Manager, and Fiscal Agent. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Las Positas Creek is one of the major tributary creeks to Arroyo Burro.  It is 1.3 miles 
long and flows from the Santa Barbara municipal golf course, under Earl Warren 
Showgrounds and Highway 101, then on the west side of Las Positas Road, where it 
eventually flows into Arroyo Burro near the intersection of Las Positas Road and 
Veronica Springs Road.  Las Positas Creek has been heavily modified by urban 
development, resulting in roughly half of the total length of natural waterway being 
converted to storm drain pipe or concrete drainage channel.   
 
The Las Positas Creek Restoration Project (Project) is focused on improving water 
quality and habitat throughout the lower half of the creek, including the reach that is 
currently a concrete drainage channel.  Removing the concrete, restoring a more 
natural stream bed, and establishing willows, oaks, and other riparian vegetation are 
primary Project goals.  Reducing flooding in the area is also a major Project objective.  
Currently, all the homes in the Las Positas Place and Veronica Place cul-de-sacs are in 
the FEMA 100-year floodplain, with 18 of those homes sited in the regulatory floodway. 
Preliminary engineering analysis indicates the Project would decrease flood potential by 
widening the creek to accommodate larger creek flows. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolution For Grant Application For Las Positas Creek Restoration Project  
March 24, 2015 
Page 2 

 

The Project is included in the Creeks Division Fiscal Year 2015 Six-Year Capital 
Improvement Plan.  It is also identified in the City’s General Plan as a possible 
implementation strategy to restore City creeks and improve water quality.  To begin 
Project implementation, the Creeks Division developed conceptual designs, conducted 
public outreach, and actively pursued grant funding opportunities.  In January 2015, the 
Creeks Division applied for a $1 million grant through the California Department of 
Water Resources Urban Streams Restoration Program (USRP).  This grant program 
provides money to local communities for projects that reduce flooding and erosion and 
associated property damage; restore, enhance or protect the natural ecological values 
of streams; and promote community involvement, education and stewardship.  The 
USRP guidelines require that the applicant’s governing body adopt a resolution approving 
the application for grant funds. The guidelines also state that if the resolution cannot be 
drawn up and adopted before the application is due, a letter of intent will be accepted until 
the resolution can be submitted.  The Creeks Division submitted a grant application and a 
letter of intent from the City Administrator before the deadline in early January. 
 
The USRP also requires the City to partner with a non-profit organization on the grant 
application in order to foster community involvement.  The Santa Barbara Urban Creeks 
Council agreed to partner with the City on this grant application. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The total Project cost, including design and construction, is estimated to be $2.8 million.  
The Creeks Division’s Capital Program for Fiscal Years 2015, 2016, and 2017 proposes a 
total of $1,505,747 to partially fund Project design and construction.  The Creeks Division 
is requesting $1 million from the Urban Streams Restoration Program for project 
construction.  It is anticipated that the Creeks Division will return to Council in April with a 
final design contract to ensure that the Project can move forward.   
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
This project will restore native plants, improve water quality, and reduce flooding in Las 
Positas Creek, thereby improving water quality downstream in the Arroyo Burro Estuary, 
and the coastal ocean at Arroyo Burro Beach. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: George Thomson, Creeks Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING THE APPLICATION FOR 
A $1,000,000 URBAN STREAMS RESTORATION 
PROGRAM GRANT AND DETERMINING THE 
APPROPRIATE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT DOCUMENT; 
CONDITIONALLY ACCEPTING THE GRANT IF OFFERED, 
SUBJECT TO CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF THE FINAL 
LANGUAGE OF THE GRANT CONTRACT; AND 
DESIGNATING THE PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE, 
CONTRACT MANAGER, AND FISCAL AGENT 

 
 
WHEREAS, the California Department of Water Resources, FloodSAFE Environmental 
Stewardship and Statewide Resources Office, Urban Streams Restoration Program has 
announced the availability of funds for grants;  
 
WHEREAS, said grants are intended to help solve flooding and erosion problems in a way that 
provides environmental enhancement;  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara has proposed to sponsor a grant application with the 
Santa Barbara Urban Creeks Council;   
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Environmental Analyst has determined that the proposed project would 
be environmentally beneficial and categorically exempt from requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per Section 15333 of the CEQA Guidelines Section: Small 
Habitat Restoration Projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, we consider the prospects of receiving a grant to be reasonably likely.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The joint application with the Santa Barbara Urban Creeks Council for an Urban 
Streams Restoration Program grant is hereby approved.  
 
SECTION 2.  If offered such a grant, we authorize the Parks and Recreation Director or her 
designee to accept and sign any contract for administration of the grant funds, and the Creeks 
Restoration/Clean Water Manager or his designee to act as Project Manager for the project. 
We hereby delegate authority to the Project Manager to manage the Agreement including the 
submission of invoices, and to delegate authority to others to provide management and 
support services required for performance of the work and administration of the Agreement.  
 
 



Agenda Item No.  4 
 

File Code No.  540.10 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: March 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption Of Resolutions Required For Drinking Water State 

Revolving Fund Loan Funding Of The Desalination Plant 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 

Barbara Pledging the Water Fund Net Revenue to Payment of the Drinking Water 
State Revolving Fund Financing Agreement; and 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Stating the City’s Intent to Reimburse Expenditures Paid Prior to Either the 
Issuance of Obligations or the Approval by the State Water Resources Control Board 
of the Project Funds for Reactivating the Charles E. Meyer Desalination Plant.  

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The continued drought has made it necessary to continue to plan for the reactivation of 
the Charles E. Meyer Desalination Plant (Desal Plant).  The cost to reactivate the Desal 
Plant is estimated to be $40 million dollars. This large expenditure needs to be financed 
over a number of years. Staff has applied for a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 
Loan (DWSRF Loan) to finance the project.  The DWSRF Loan is an attractive loan 
because of the low interest rate, estimated to be approximately 1.6 percent over a 
twenty-year repayment term.  One of the requirements of the DWSRF Loan is that the 
City pledge repayment from the Water Fund net revenue – the revenue available after 
payment of operation costs and ahead of investment in capital improvements or 
reserves.  The City must also agree that the pledge constitutes a lien in favor of the 
State Water Resources Control Board on the Water Fund until the loan is fully repaid 
and to collect such revenue as necessary to repay the loan.   
 
In order to finance any costs that need to be expended before securing the DWSRF 
Loan, the City must adopt a resolution stating its intention to finance those costs.   
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of Resolutions Required For Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan Funding 
Of The Desalination Plant  
March 24, 2015 
Page 2 

Rev. 031214 Sect. 1b 

 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
At its meeting of March 10, 2015, the City held a public hearing on the proposed water 
rates.  It is anticipated that water rates designed to provide sufficient revenue to meet 
the loan obligations will be adopted in April.  
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager/RJB/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA PLEDGING THE WATER FUND NET 
REVENUE TO PAYMENT OF THE DRINKING WATER 
STATE REVOLVING FUND FINANCING AGREEMENT  

 
WHEREAS, an outside funding source has been identified by staff as an essential 
instrument to fund the planning, design, and construction costs of the Reactivating of the 
Charles E. Meyer Desalination Plant Project (“Project”); 
 
WHEREAS, the City Administrator has been authorized by the City Council on November 
4, 2014, to apply for State Revolving Funds to pay for a substantial portion of the costs of 
such projects;  
 
WHEREAS, the State Water Resources Control Board (“State Water Board”) has notified 
the City Administrator that DWSRF applications require City Council action dedicating a 
funding source for repayment of the financing agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council will take separate action to accept the financing agreement and 
award the contract for the planning study, design work, and final construction of said 
Project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. The City of Santa Barbara hereby dedicates and pledges the Water Fund 
and the Water Fund net system revenues to payment of any and all DWSRF financing 
for the Project.  
 
SECTION 2. The City of Santa Barbara commits to collect such revenue and maintain 
such fund throughout the term of such financing and until the City of Santa Barbara has 
satisfied its repayment obligation thereunder unless modification or change is approved 
in writing by the State Water Board. 
 
SECTION 3. So long as the financing agreement is outstanding, the City of Santa 
Barbara’s pledge hereunder shall constitute a lien in favor of the State Water Board on 
the Water Fund and Water Fund net system revenues without any further action 
necessary. 
 
SECTION 4. So long as the financing agreement is outstanding, the City of Santa 
Barbara commits to maintaining the Water Fund and Water Fund net system revenues 
at levels sufficient to meet its obligations under the financing agreement. 
 
 
 



1 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA STATING THE CITY'S INTENT TO 
REIMBURSE EXPENDITURES PAID PRIOR TO EITHER 
THE ISSUANCE OF OBLIGATIONS OR THE APPROVAL 
BY THE STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 
OF THE PROJECT FUNDS FOR REACTIVATING THE 
CHARLES E. MEYER DESALINATION PLANT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara ("City'') desires to finance the cost of planning, 
designing, and constructing certain public facilities and improvements relating to the 
Reactivating of the Charles E. Meyer Desalination Plant ("Project"); 
 
WHEREAS, the City intends to finance the Project with monies (Project Funds) provided 
to the City by the State of California, acting by and through the State Water Resources 
Control Board ("State Water Board"); 
 
WHEREAS, the State Water Board may fund the Project Funds with proceeds from the 
sale of obligations, the interest upon which is excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes ("Obligations"); 
 
WHEREAS, prior to either the issuance of the Obligations or the approval by the State 
Water Board of the Project Funds, the City desires to incur certain capital expenditures 
("Expenditures") with respect to the Project from available monies of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that those monies to be advanced on and after the 
date hereof to pay the Expenditures are available only for a temporary period, and it is 
necessary to reimburse the City for the Expenditures from the proceeds of the 
Obligations. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. The City hereby states its intention and reasonably expects to reimburse 
Expenditures paid prior to the issuance of the Obligations or the approval by the State 
Water Board of the Project Funds. 
 
SECTION 2. The reasonably expected maximum principal amount of the Project Funds 
is $40,000,000. 
 
SECTION 3. This Resolution is being adopted no later than 60 days after the date on 
which the City will expend monies for the construction portion of the Project costs to be 
reimbursed with Project Funds. 
 



2 

SECTION 4. Each City expenditure will be of a type properly chargeable to a capital 
account under general federal income tax principles. 
 
SECTION 5. To the best of the City's knowledge, the City is not aware of the previous 
adoption of official intents by the City that have been made as a matter of course for the 
purpose of reimbursing expenditures and for which tax-exempt obligations have not 
been issued. 
 
SECTION 6. This Resolution is adopted as official intent of the City in order to comply 
with Treasury Regulation §1 .150-2 and any other regulations of the Internal Revenue 
Service relating to the qualification for reimbursement of Project costs. 
 
SECTION 7. All the recitals in this Resolution are true and correct and the City so finds, 
determines and represents. 
 



Agenda Item No.  5 
 

File Code No. 530.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE:  March 24, 2015 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Increase In Professional Services Contract Authority With Godbe 

Research For Polling Services 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council increase the City Administrator’s negotiating authority to execute a not-to-
exceed $41,000 contract for professional services with Godbe Research to conduct a 
comprehensive opinion poll related to a possible revenue generating ballot measure. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On March 3, 2015, Council authorized staff to negotiate a professional services 
agreement with Godbe Research for an amount not to exceed $41,000 to conduct a 
community poll related to unfunded infrastructure needs and possible funding options. 
Staff has learned that Godbe Research contracts with an agency that employs part-time 
call center workers that are not paid a living wage as required by the City.  
 
To comply with the City’s living wage requirements, staff is recommending the total 
contract amount be increased by $5,000 for a total contract amount up to $41,000. If 
approved, the contract will be finalized to initiate the community polling effort. Council 
will received a presentation on poll findings in May.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
There are sufficient funds in the City Administrator’s Office budget to cover the 
additional cost.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Nina Johnson, Assistant to the City Administrator 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  6 
File Code No.  260.02 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Treasury Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: February 2015 Investment Report 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council accept the February 2015 Investment Report. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The attached investment report includes Investment Activity, Interest Revenue, a 
Summary of Cash and Investments, and Investment Portfolio detail as of February 28, 
2015.   
 
ATTACHMENT: February 2015 Investment Report 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Treasury Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Acting Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY INVESTMENT INCOME

PURCHASES OR DEPOSITS POOLED INVESTMENTS

 2/11 Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 2,000,000$         Interest Earned on Investments 171,409$              

Total 2,000,000$         Amortization (10,405)

Total 161,005$              

SALES, MATURITIES, CALLS OR WITHDRAWALS

 2/17 LAIF Withdrawal - City (5,000,000)$       

2/24 LAIF Withdrawal - City (3,000,000)         

Total (8,000,000)$       

ACTIVITY TOTAL (6,000,000)$       INCOME TOTAL 161,005$              

A
ttachm

ent
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Activity and Interest Report

February 28, 2015

1

ATTACHMENT



ENDING BALANCE AS OF JANUARY 31, 2015

 Yield to Percent Average
Book Maturity of Days to

Description Value  (365 days) Portfolio Maturity
 

MUFG Union Bank NA Checking Account 18,552,393$         0.400% 10.20% 1
State of California LAIF 36,000,000 0.262% 19.79% 1
Certificates of Deposit 9,000,000 1.311% 4.95% 722
Treasury Securities 10,158,557 0.458% 5.58% 425
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 90,996,192 1.357% 50.02% 1,055
Corporate/Medium Term Notes 12,019,583 1.910% 6.61% 671

176,726,723         1.017% 97.14% 650

SB Airport Promissory Note 5,200,182 4.195% 2.86% 5,263
Totals and Averages 181,926,905$       1.108% 100.00% 782

Total Cash and Investments 181,926,905$       
 

  
NET CASH AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY FOR FEBRUARY 2015 (9,381,258)$              

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Summary of Cash and Investments

February 28, 2015

NET CASH AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY FOR FEBRUARY 2015 (9,381,258)$              
 

 
ENDING BALANCE AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2015

 Yield to Percent Average
Book Maturity of Days to

Description Value  (365 days) Portfolio Maturity
 

MUFG Union Bank NA Checking Account 15,181,540$         0.400% 8.80% 1 (1)

State of California LAIF 28,000,000 0.266% 16.23% 1 (2)

Certificates of Deposit 9,000,000 1.311% 5.22% 694
Treasury Securities 10,148,923 0.458% 5.88% 397
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 92,996,853 1.361% 53.90% 1,036
Corporate/Medium Term Notes 12,018,150 1.910% 6.97% 643

167,345,466         1.073% 96.99% 684

SB Airport Promissory Note 5,200,182 4.195% 3.01% 5,235
Totals and Averages 172,545,647$       1.167% 100.00% 821

Total Cash and Investments 172,545,647$       
Note:   
(1) Interest earnings allowance is provided at the rate of 0.400% by MUFG Union Bank, N.A. to help offset banking fees. 

(2) The average life of the LAIF portfolio as of February 28, 2015 is 208 days.  

2



 PURCHASE MATURITY STATED YIELD AT FACE BOOK MARKET BOOK  

DESCRIPTION DATE DATE MOODY'S S & P RATE 365 VALUE VALUE VAL UE GAIN/(LOSS) COMMENTS

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUNDS

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND - - - - 0.266 0.266 28,000,000.00 28,000,000.00 28,000,000.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, LAIF      28,000,000.00 28,000,000.00 28,000,000.00 0.00

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

AMERICAN EXPRESS BANK FSB 10/23/14 10/23/19 - - 2.200 2.200 250,000.00 250,000.00 249,745.00 (255.00) FDIC Certificate 35328

CAPITAL ONE BANK USA NA 10/29/14 10/29/19 - - 1.900 1.900 250,000.00 250,000.00 249,697.50 (302.50) FDIC Certificate 33954

GE CAPITAL BANK 10/17/14 10/17/19 - - 2.000 2.000 250,000.00 250,000.00 249,682.50 (317.50) FDIC Certificate 33778

GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA 10/29/14 10/29/19 - - 2.150 2.150 250,000.00 250,000.00 249,700.00 (300.00) FDIC Certificate 33124

MONTECITO BANK & TRUST 11/18/13 11/18/15 - - 0.600 0.600 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00  

UNION BANK 08/31/12 08/31/15 - - 1.230 1.247 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00  

UNION BANK 08/31/12 08/31/17 - - 1.490 1.511 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, Certificates of deposit     9,000,000.00 9,000,000.00 8,998,825.00 (1,175.00)

TREASURY SECURITIES - COUPON

U S TREASURY NOTE 10/25/12 03/15/15 Aaa AA+ 0.375 0.342 2,000,000.00 2,000,025.11 1,999,840.00 (185.11)  

U S TREASURY NOTE 10/25/12 10/31/15 Aaa AA+ 1.250 0.397 2,000,000.00 2,011,323.23 2,013,900.00 2,576.77  

U S TREASURY NOTE 02/22/13 05/15/16 Aaa AA+ 5.125 0.442 2,000,000.00 2,112,192.01 2,114,060.00 1,867.99  

U S TREASURY NOTE 02/22/13 08/31/16 Aaa AA+ 1.000 0.502 2,000,000.00 2,014,808.27 2,015,940.00 1,131.73  

U S TREASURY NOTE 02/22/13 02/28/17 Aaa AA+ 0.875 0.607 2,000,000.00 2,010,574.30 2,009,540.00 (1,034.30)  

     Subtotal, Treasury Securities 10,000,000.00 10,148,922.92 10,153,280.00 4,357.08

QUALITY RATING

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Investment Portfolio

February 28, 2015

FEDERAL AGENCY ISSUES - COUPON  
FED AGRICULTURAL MTG CORP 10/03/13 10/03/18 - - 1.720 1.720 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,023,620.00 23,620.00  

FED AGRICULTURAL MTG CORP 12/12/13 12/12/18 - - 1.705 1.705 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,037,480.00 37,480.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 01/22/15 07/22/19 Aaa AA+ 1.720 1.720 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,984,680.00 (15,320.00) Callable 04/22/15, then continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 07/09/14 07/09/18 Aaa AA+ 1.470 1.470 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,003,260.00 3,260.00 Callable 07/09/15, then continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 01/22/15 01/22/19 Aaa AA+ 1.480 1.480 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,999,820.00 (180.00) Callable 01/22/16, then continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 08/15/12 08/15/17 Aaa AA+ 0.980 0.980 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,996,560.00 (3,440.00) Callable, continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 09/18/13 09/18/17 Aaa AA+ 1.550 1.550 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,029,340.00 29,340.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 12/16/14 12/16/19 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,740.00 740.00 Callable 12/16/15, then continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 02/11/15 02/11/19 Aaa AA+ 1.520 1.520 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,995,900.00 (4,100.00) Callable 02/11/16, then continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 02/16/11 02/16/16 Aaa AA+ 2.570 2.570 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,044,280.00 44,280.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 07/17/13 07/17/17 Aaa AA+ 1.300 1.300 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,019,220.00 19,220.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/13/13 09/14/18 Aaa AA+ 2.000 1.910 2,000,000.00 2,006,036.32 2,047,460.00 41,423.68  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 04/17/14 04/17/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,001,780.00 1,780.00 Callable, 04/17/15 once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 01/16/13 01/16/18 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,972,640.00 (27,360.00) Callable 04/16/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 01/17/14 04/17/18 Aaa AA+ 1.480 1.480 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,021,600.00 21,600.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/26/14 06/26/19 Aaa AA+ 1.250 2.062 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,997,380.00 (2,620.00) SU 1.25%-6% Call 03/26/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 11/26/14 11/26/19 Aaa AA+ 1.500 2.102 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,004,360.00 4,360.00 SU 1.5%-5% Call 05/26/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/27/13 06/27/18 Aaa AA+ 1.250 1.493 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,001,320.00 1,320.00 SU 1.125%-2.5% Call 03/27/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 05/22/14 05/22/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,998,740.00 (1,260.00) Callable, continuous

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 04/15/11 05/27/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,008,800.00 8,800.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 12/16/13 12/14/18 Aaa AA+ 1.750 1.650 2,000,000.00 2,007,231.94 2,028,740.00 21,508.06  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/18/14 06/09/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.003 2,000,000.00 1,999,847.25 2,010,380.00 10,532.75  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 10/22/14 11/18/16 Aaa AA+ 0.750 0.500 2,000,000.00 2,008,502.36 2,006,300.00 (2,202.36)  

3



 PURCHASE MATURITY STATED YIELD AT FACE BOOK MARKET BOOK  

DESCRIPTION DATE DATE MOODY'S S & P RATE 365 VALUE VALUE VAL UE GAIN/(LOSS) COMMENTS

QUALITY RATING

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Investment Portfolio

February 28, 2015

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 06/26/13 06/26/18 Aaa AA+ 1.400 1.400 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,998,700.00 (1,300.00) Callable 03/26/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 12/18/13 12/18/18 Aaa AA+ 1.500 1.839 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,600.00 600.00 SU 1.5%-2.75% Call 03/18/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 04/23/12 04/17/15 Aaa AA+ 0.500 0.534 2,000,000.00 1,999,913.48 1,999,700.00 (213.48)  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 06/30/14 06/30/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,004,660.00 4,660.00 Callable 06/30/15, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 09/12/12 09/12/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,994,760.00 (5,240.00) Callable 03/12/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 01/16/13 01/16/18 Aaa AA+ 1.050 1.050 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,998,160.00 (1,840.00) Callable 04/16/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 11/26/14 11/26/19 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,005,960.00 5,960.00 Callable 05/26/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 06/26/13 06/26/18 Aaa AA+ 1.500 1.500 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,001,580.00 1,580.00 Callable 03/26/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 11/20/13 09/29/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.030 1,000,000.00 999,238.36 1,001,900.00 2,661.64  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 01/30/13 01/30/18 Aaa AA+ 1.030 1.030 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,974,950.00 (25,050.00) Callable 04/30/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/12/12 12/12/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,984,420.00 (15,580.00) Callable 03/12/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 06/19/13 12/19/16 Aaa AA+ 0.750 0.750 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,998,800.00 (1,200.00) Callable 03/19/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/15/13 10/26/17 Aaa AA+ 0.875 1.062 2,000,000.00 1,990,308.87 1,996,560.00 6,251.13  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/11/13 11/27/18 Aaa AA+ 1.625 1.606 2,000,000.00 2,001,356.55 2,021,700.00 20,343.45  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/08/12 11/08/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,985,600.00 (14,400.00) Callable 05/08/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/08/12 11/08/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,985,600.00 (14,400.00) Callable 05/08/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/26/12 12/26/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,977,240.00 (22,760.00) Callable 03/26/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 09/21/10 09/21/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,020,080.00 20,080.00  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/10/10 10/26/15 Aaa AA+ 1.625 2.067 2,000,000.00 1,994,534.51 2,018,620.00 24,085.49  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 02/05/13 02/05/18 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,983,200.00 (16,800.00) Callable 05/05/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/20/13 10/26/17 Aaa AA+ 0.875 1.070 2,000,000.00 1,989,883.47 1,996,560.00 6,676.53  FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/20/13 10/26/17 Aaa AA+ 0.875 1.070 2,000,000.00 1,989,883.47 1,996,560.00 6,676.53  

     Subtotal, Federal Agencies 93,000,000.00 92,996,853.11 93,183,750.00 186,896.89
 

CORPORATE/MEDIUM TERM NOTES

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY FIN 12/15/10 12/15/15 Aa2 AA 2.450 2.530 2,000,000.00 1,998,816.67 2,031,560.00 32,743.33  

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC 11/29/13 02/09/18 Aa2 AA 1.550 1.550 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,020,520.00 20,520.00  

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 11/10/10 11/09/15 A1 AA+ 2.250 2.250 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,023,980.00 23,980.00  

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 01/14/14 01/14/19 A1 AA+ 2.300 2.250 2,000,000.00 2,003,637.28 2,052,220.00 48,582.72  

PROCTOR & GAMBLE 09/20/11 11/15/15 Aa3 AA- 1.800 1.085 2,000,000.00 2,009,837.19 2,018,520.00 8,682.81  

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT 09/26/11 09/15/16 Aa3 AA- 2.000 1.800 2,000,000.00 2,005,858.96 2,038,640.00 32,781.04  

     Subtotal, Corporate Securities 12,000,000.00 12,018,150.10 12,185,440.00 167,289.90

SB AIRPORT PROMISSORY NOTE (LT)

SANTA BARBARA AIRPORT 07/14/09 06/30/29 - - 3.500 4.195 5,200,181.75 5,200,181.75 5,200,181.75 0.00  

     Subtotal, SBA Note 5,200,181.75 5,200,181.75 5,200,181.75 0.00

CHECKING ACCOUNT

MUFG UNION BANK NA CHKNG ACCNT - - - - 0.400 0.400 15,181,539.61 15,181,539.61 15,181,539.61 0.00  

     Subtotal, Checking Account 15,181,539.61 15,181,539.61 15,181,539.61 0.00

TOTALS 172,381,721.36 172,545,647.49 172,903,016.36 357,368.87

Market values have been obtained from the City's safekeeping agent, MUFG Union Bank NA - The Private Bank (UBTPB). UBTPB uses Interactive Data Pricing Service, Bloomberg and DTC.

4



Agenda Item No.  7 

File Code No.  250.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Accounting Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements For The Seven 

Months Ended January 31, 2015 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements for the Seven 
Months Ended January 31, 2015. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The interim financial statements for the seven months ended January 31, 2015 (58.3% 
of the fiscal year) are attached.  The interim financial statements include budgetary 
activity in comparison to actual activity for the General Fund, Enterprise Funds, Internal 
Service Funds, and select Special Revenue Funds. 
 
ATTACHMENT: Interim Financial Statements for the Seven Months Ended 

January 31, 2015 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Accounting Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Acting Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT









































Agenda Item No.  8 
File Code No.  570.06 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Recreation Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appropriation Of Human Services Grant Funds For Youth 

Apprenticeship And Santa Barbara Arts Alliance Programs 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council increase appropriations and estimated revenues in the Fiscal Year 2015 
Parks and Recreation Department General Fund, in the amount of $15,000, for two 
Human Services Grant awards. 
 
DISCUSSION:   
 
The Parks and Recreation Department was the recipient of two Human Services Grant 
awards in Fiscal Year 2015 totaling $15,000. These funds are to support the following 
programs: 
 
$10,000 for Youth Job Apprenticeship program 
 
The Youth Job Apprenticeship Program provides job training and job placement to 
approximately 60 at-risk community youth annually.  Participating youth receive 
approximately 160 hours of paid employment.  This funding will be utilized to pay hourly 
salaries of the youth who participate in the program.   
 
$5,000 for Santa Barbara Arts Alliance program 
 
The Santa Barbara Arts Alliance program is a free art-based afterschool mentoring 
program that provides leadership and life skills development opportunities through 
hands-on community service projects.  Based at the Franklin Neighborhood Center, 
approximately 40 low-income and under-served youth are served by this program 
annually.  Program curricula includes art workshops, field trips, neighborhood clean-
ups, and in the program year and culminates with the creation and installation of public 
murals in areas plagued by graffiti vandalism. This funding will be utilized to pay the 
hourly salaries of the artist mentors who lead the program. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appropriation Of Human Services Grant Funds For Youth Apprenticeship And Santa 
Barbara Arts Alliance Programs 
March 24, 2015 
Page 2 

 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Appropriations and estimated revenues in the Fiscal Year 2015 Parks and Recreation 
Department General Fund will be increased by $15,000 as a result of these grant funds.   
 
 
PREPARED BY: Judith McCaffrey, Recreation Programs Manager 

  
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  9 
 

File Code No.  540.10 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: March 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Purchase Order For City Hall Well Repair 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve a maintenance and repair Purchase Order in the amount of 
$102,164.56 to PCL Construction, Inc., for repairs made to the City Hall Well.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Ortega Groundwater Treatment Plant Project (Project) was completed in October 
2013.  The scope of work included replacing the column pipe, pump and motor at both 
the City Hall and Vera Cruz Wells. The Project was successfully completed, and the 
City began producing water from the City Hall and Vera Cruz Wells in January 2014.  
 
On May 27, 2014, the pump and motor for the pump for the City Hall Well (Well) shut off 
while pumping water to the Ortega Groundwater Treatment Plant. After an initial 
assessment, staff contacted PCL Construction, Inc. (PCL), the general contractor, who 
installed the pump and motor, regarding a potential warranty issue.   
 
PCL arranged to have the pump and motor pulled from the well on June 17, 2014.  Only 
a portion of the supporting column pipe was retrieved.  The remainder of the supporting 
column pipe and the pump and motor had fallen to the bottom of the well.  Because the 
column pipe was broken, a more specialized technique was needed to retrieve the 
remaining equipment from the Well on September 16, 2014.  
 
The pump and motor were sent to the manufacturer for evaluation.  In a report dated 
October 29, 2014, the manufacturer determined, based on the wear pattern and the 
amount of sand found in the pump, the Well had been pumping sand for a period of 
time. When the pump finally filled with sand, it caused a torque event that broke the 
supporting column pipe. Forensic testing on the column pipe was conducted by a 
materials testing laboratory and documented in a report dated December 30, 2014.  The 
report stated that the material used to manufacture the column pipe met the standards 
and that the mode of failure was flexural bending fatigue. This mode of failure was 



Council Agenda Report 
Purchase Order For City Hall Well Repair 
March 24, 2015 
Page 2 
 

Rev 12-11-14 

consistent with the wear seen in the pump and the break in the middle of the column 
pipe.  Based on this information, it was concluded that the failure of the column pipe, 
pump and motor was not a warranty issue; therefore, the City was responsible for the 
$102,164.56 in costs related to removing the column pipe, pump, and motor from the 
Well.   
 
With equipment mobilized onsite to perform the recovery work, staff had the contractor 
install a gravel pack and a new pump and motor in the Well at a higher elevation.  
Installation was completed on January 23, 2015, at a cost of $56,316.07.  The Well has 
been returned to service and has been reliably producing water, but the earlier sanding 
problem indicates that the Well is nearing the end of its useful life and needs to be 
scheduled for replacement.   
 
FUNDING   
 
There are sufficient appropriations in the Water Fund to cover the $102,164.56 related 
to recovering the column pipe, motor, and pump from the Well.   
 
The cost of the installation of a new pump and motor was covered under the Design For 
On-Call Engineering Services for Groundwater Well Development Projects contract, 
approved by Council on April 8, 2014. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager/LS/mh 
  
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  10 
 

File Code No.  320.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: March 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Facilities Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction Of The Westside Center Bathroom 

Renovation Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council award a contract with Kinyon Construction, Inc., in their lowest acceptable 
bid amount of $185,175 for construction of the Community Development Block Grant 
Westside Center Bathroom Renovation, Bid No. 3769, and authorize the Public Works 
Director to execute the contract and approve expenditures up to $18,517.50 (10 
percent) to cover any cost increases that may result from contract change orders for 
extra work. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The work consists of renovating over 300 square feet of interior space at the Westside 
Center. The Westside Center is located within the eligible Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) census tracts. The City has applied for and received CDBG 
funding. Renovation shall include Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) work and finish 
upgrades to the existing men’s and women’s bathrooms, hazardous material 
abatement, minor exterior work to include replacing two existing window openings with 
doors, and replacement of existing sidewalk paving at the new doors.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Westside Center Bathroom Renovation Project 
March 24, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of 4 bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Genesis Innovators 

North Hills, CA 
$148,500.00 

2. Kinyon Construction, Incorporated 
Santa Maria, CA 

$185,175.00 

3. EJS Construction 
Carpinteria, CA 

$188,800.00 

4. Ardalan Construction Company 
Thousand Oaks, CA 

$204,300.00 

 
The low bid of $148,500, submitted by Genesis Innovators is not an acceptable bid due 
to a failure to provide subcontractor information as specified by Public Contracting Code 
§4104. The lowest acceptable bid of $185,175, submitted by Kinyon Construction, Inc., 
is responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications.   
 
The change order funding recommendation of $18,517.50, or 10 percent, is typical for 
this type of work and size of project. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
This project is funded by CDBG and Parks and Recreation Fiscal Year 2015 operating 
funds. The CDBG amount of $149,282 is for construction only. Parks and Recreation 
Fiscal Year 2015 operating funds will be used to cover the remaining basic contract 
costs, change order costs and City staff time. There are sufficient appropriated funds in 
the CDBG and Parks and Recreation funds to cover the cost of the project. 
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report:  
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 
Construction Contract $185,175 $18,517.50 $203,692.50 

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $203,692.50 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Westside Center Bathroom Renovation Project 
March 24, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 

The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 

 
ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 

*Cents have been rounded to the nearest dollar in this table.   

 

 CDBG Share City Share Total 
Design (by Contract) $12,200 $6,065 $18,265 

 Subtotal $12,200 $6,065 $18,265 
Construction Contract   $149,282 $35,893 $185,175 
Construction Change Order Allowance $0 $18,517.50 $18,517.50 

Subtotal $149,282 $54,410.50  $203,692.50
 Construction Management/Inspection 

(by City Staff) 
$0 $5,000 $5,000 

 Subtotal $0 $5,000 $5,000 
TOTAL PROJECT COST $161,482 $65,475.50 $226,957.50 

 
 
PREPARED BY: Jim Dewey, Facilities & Energy Manager/BJK/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  11 
 

File Code No.  540.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: March 24, 2015 

 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract Amendment For Construction Management And 

Inspection Services For The Gibraltar Conduit Hydroelectric Plant 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize an amendment to Contract No. 24,715 with Rockwell 
Construction Services, LLC, in an amount of $10,960 for additional construction 
management and inspection services for recommissioning the Gibraltar Conduit 
Hydroelectric Plant, raising the overall contract amount to $55,178. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City owns the Gibraltar Conduit Hydroelectric Plant (Plant), located at 1445 San 
Roque Road, which receives water from Gibraltar Reservoir via Mission Tunnel. In 
1985, the Plant was regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) 
and produced electrical power which was sold to Southern California Edison (SCE). The 
Plant was idled in 1998, when it was determined that the project operation and 
maintenance costs, along with regulatory burdens, exceeded revenues from power 
sales.  
 
On July 2, 2013, Council approved the purchase of the one-acre parcel of land beneath 
the Plant from the federal government. The ownership and possession of the land 
enabled the City to obtain an exemption from a FERC license and resume the sale of 
hydroelectric power to SCE. 
 
On February 11, 2014, Council approved a contract to SOAR Technologies, Inc. 
(SOAR), in the total amount of $605,082, including extra services, to renovate the Plant 
and operate and maintain it for one year. Additionally, Council approved a professional 
services contract in the amount of $38,450 to Rockwell Construction Services, LLC, 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract Amendment For Construction Management And Inspection Services For The 
Gibraltar Conduit Hydroelectric Plant 
March 24, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

(RCS) to provide construction management and inspection services and authorized 
$5,768 to cover unanticipated extra services. 
 
CURRENT STATUS 
 
The Plant renovation by SOAR is nearing completion and is within budget. However, the 
original contract time of nine months had to be extended by an additional four months 
due to circumstances beyond the contractor’s control, including a slowdown at the Port 
of Long Beach, a Verizon telemetry delay, extra services for replacing the water valves 
and weir, construction of a bulkhead in Mission Tunnel, and certification of the Plant by 
the California Energy Commission. The additional project time has required additional 
construction management and inspection services by RCS, which has exceeded the 
authorized extra services amount. Staff has received an acceptable request from RCS 
for an additional $10,960 for extra services. The request would increase the total RCS 
contract amount from $44,218 to $55,178, which represents 9.1 percent of the $605,082 
construction contract.    
 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES  
CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 

 

 
Base 

Contract 
Extra 

Services 
Total 

 

Initial Contract Amount $38,450 $5,768 $44,218 

Proposed Increase $0 $10,960 $10,960 

Total $38,450 $16,728 $55,178 

 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Water Fund to cover all remaining project 
costs. At its meeting of March 9, 2015, the Board of Water Commissioners voted 5-0-0 
to concur with the staff recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Catherine Taylor/RLR/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  12 

File Code No.  210.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Treasury Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment To Professional Services Agreement With Ruby Carrillo 

For Accounting Services  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council approve and authorize the Finance Director to execute a First Amendment to 
Agreement No. 21400186, Professional Service Contract with Ruby Carrillo for Accounting 
Services, to increase the agreement by $30,000 for a total of $50,000.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On July 7, 2014, the City entered into a contract with Ruby Carrillo, hereinafter referred to 
as “Consultant”, for $20,000 to provide Accounting Services to the City to assist the 
Finance Department during the financial management system replacement project and to 
assist with the preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The 
staff responsible for producing the CAFR was the primary staff involved in the 
development and implementation of the new financial management system, thus outside 
accounting assistance was necessary to complete the CAFR.  
 
In January 2015, the Treasury Manager position in the Finance Department became 
vacant. The Accounting Manager was appointed to the Treasury Manager position in 
February; however, the Department has experienced difficulty in filling the vacant 
Accounting Manager position. Due to the heavy workload resulting from the vacancy in 
this key management position in the Finance Department, staff is requesting to continue 
the agreement with the Consultant to perform tasks typically performed by the Accounting 
Manager position. As such, staff is requesting a $30,000 increase to the Consultant’s 
contract, which would bring it to a total of $50,000 and extend services for an additional 12 
weeks. The Consultant will assist with tasks such as capital asset reconciliations, long-
term debt analyses, journal entry preparation, financial statement preparation, quarterly 
reviews, and other tasks commonly performed by the Accounting Manager. 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Amendment To Professional Services Agreement With Ruby Carrillo For Accounting 
Services 
March 24, 2015 
Page 2 
 

3/19/2015  9:22:59 AM   

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The original agreement for $20,000 was funded with financial management system 
replacement project funds in the Information Services Capital Fund. The $30,000 increase 
to the agreement will be funded by salary savings resulting from the vacancy in the 
Accounting Manager position.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Treasury Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Acting Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 



 1 MAR 24 2015 #13 
640.07 

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA DENYING THE APPEAL AND 
UPHOLDING THE DECISION OF THE SINGLE FAMILY 
DESIGN BOARD GRANTING PROJECT DESIGN 
APPROVAL FOR ADDITIONS TO THE RESIDENCE AT 
1912 MISSION RIDGE ROAD 
 

WHEREAS, Craig and Jane Morrison, owners of 1912 Mission Ridge Road, have 
applied for design review approval of a proposal for a 22 square foot first-floor addition 
and a 530 square foot second floor addition to an existing 2,146 square foot one-story 
single-family residence with an attached 658 square foot garage within the City of Santa 
Barbara. (MST 2014-00585)  The proposal includes one new uncovered parking space, 
a 194 square foot covered patio at the entry, a 158 square foot second-story deck, a 
raised pool and surrounding deck, and interior remodel work. Also included in the 
project are an “as-built” approval of an installed air conditioner condenser unit, 
relocation of the pool equipment enclosure, and a new driveway and pedestrian gate.  
The proposed project would result in a project of a total of 3,251 square feet of 
development on a 25,091 square foot lot in the Hillside Design District.  The project is 
69% of the City’s maximum floor to lot area (FAR) guideline; 
 
WHEREAS, the SFDB (SFDB) conducted its initial concept review of the project on 
December 15, 2014 at which time the SFDB voted unanimously to continue the project 
indefinitely, making the following comments: 
 
 1. The SFDB supports the style and quality of architecture. 
 
 2. The SFDB finds the second story acceptable. 
 
 3. Erect standard level story poles; 
 
WHEREAS, on January 26, 2015, the SFDB conducted a site visit to 1912 Mission Ridge 
Road to observe the site with the story poles depicting the proposed ridgelines of the 
remodeled residence and the proposed addition over the garage; 
 
WHEREAS, on January 26, 2015, following the site visit, the project was presented to the 
SFDB for consideration of Project Design Approval.  The SFDB voted 5-1 (Pierce 
Opposed) to grant Project Design Approval, finding that the Neighborhood Preservation 
Ordinance criteria were met with the following comments:  
 

1. Study removing the bathroom window or utilizing frosted materials (on the 
northern elevation).  
 

2. Remove the balcony on the west elevation above the garage.  
 



2 
 

3. The size, bulk, and scale are consistent and compatible to the 
neighborhood, the quality of architecture and materials are superior, and the project 
complies with the Good Neighbor Guidelines. 
 
Board member Pierce’s opposition to the motion granting Project Design Approval was 
due to the second condition of the motion that requires removal of the balcony on the 
west elevation above the garage.  Board member Pierce felt that the balcony was an 
acceptable element of the proposal and disagreed with the condition of approval that 
required the removal of the balcony; 
 
WHEREAS, on February 4, 2015, Susan Basham from the law firm of Price, Postel and 
Parma, attorney for Roger and Stefanie Bacon and Rinaldo and Lalla Brutoco to the 
project, timely filed an appeal regarding the SFDB decision to grant Project Design 
Approval.  Ms. Basham’s appeal enumerated three grounds for the appeal: 
 
 1. The SFDB abused its discretion when it voted to affirm the Neighborhood 
Preservation Ordinance Compatibility Finding given the size and bulk of the second story 
addition. 
 
 2. The SFDB abused its discretion when it voted to affirm the Neighborhood 
Preservation Ordinance Good Neighbor Guidelines Finding given the allegation that the 
second story addition and deck will result in direct window to window views of the 
Appellants’ residences and sight lines into their private yard and pool areas. 
 
 3. The project fails to comply with Single Family Residence Design Guidelines’ 
Good Neighbor Tips for private views.  The appeal argues that the height and scale of the 
proposed second story addition causes the loss of “a substantial portion of the existing city 
and ocean views from the entire first floor and yard area” [of the Bacons’ residence at 
1901 East Las Tunas Road];  
 
WHEREAS, on March 9, 2015, the City Council conducted a duly noticed site visit during 
which it inquired into the physical aspects of the issues presented on appeal, including the 
site planning; the height of the proposed roof forms of the remodeled residence; the 
location, size and materials of the proposed windows and their potential impacts on the 
privacy of neighboring properties; and the location and use of proposed balconies on the 
southern and western elevations; 
 
WHEREAS, on March 10, 2015, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public hearing 
on the appeal.  The project design presented to the City Council on appeal was the project 
design approved by the SFDB on January 26, 2015; however, the applicants asked the 
City Council to consider allowing the balcony on the western elevation to remain.  The 
applicants expressed a willingness to design the balcony so it would merely serve as an 
architectural element and would not allow persons to stand outside the second story 
addition on the western elevation.  The appeal hearing included the following evidence 
relied upon by the Council: 
 



3 
 

1. A detailed written report and staff presentation, including a City staff report 
discussing the appeal issues, and a PowerPoint presentation on the appeal issues – 
both of which are incorporated by reference into this Resolution (along with the entire 
record of proceedings). 

 
2. A presentation by Susan Basham, including PowerPoint presentations by her 

clients Rinaldo Brutoco and Roger Bacon detailing the grounds of the appeal, which are 
part of the record in this case and were fully considered by the City Council in making its 
decision on this appeal. 

 
3. A PowerPoint presentation by the Morrisons’ architect, Jeff Shelton, which is 

part of the record in this case and was fully considered by the City Council in making its 
decision on this appeal.  In addition, Mr. Shelton prepared a scale model of the 
proposed project which was present for viewing at the City Council site visit and appeal 
hearing. 

  
4. Public comments from the chair of the SFDB detailing the Board’s perspective 

on the Project design and the appeal issues. 
 
5. Public comment from members of public all of whom spoke in opposition to the 

project; and 
 

WHEREAS, after consideration of all of the evidence presented (both written and oral), 
as well as the public testimony received, and after deliberation by the Council members, 
the City Council voted 6-1 (Mayor Schneider dissenting) to direct the preparation of 
written findings which, consistent with the oral findings made by Council, would deny the 
appeal of the Project and to uphold the decision of the SFDB to grant Project Design 
Approval. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated into these 
findings. 
 
SECTION 2. All written, graphic and oral materials and information submitted to the 
SFDB and the City Council by City staff, the public and the parties are hereby accepted 
as part of the record of proceedings.  The facts and findings in the March 10, 2015 
Council Agenda Report are incorporated into this Resolution and determined to be true. 
 
SECTION 3. With respect to alleged incompatibility of the project with its neighborhood, 
using the criteria set forth in Evidence Code section 780, and in particular subsection (f), 
the Council finds that the appellants and the public comment were not credible. 
 
SECTION 4. The Council carefully reviewed the evidence it obtained during the site 
visit and public hearing and finds and determines as follows: 



4 
 

A. Neighborhood Preservation Findings.  The Council makes the following 
findings pursuant to the Neighborhood Preservation Ordinance, Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code section 22.69.050 A. 1-7: 
 

Consistency and Appearance.  The proposed development is consistent with 
the scenic character of the City and will enhance the appearance of the neighborhood 
by proposing an upgraded architectural style when compared to the design of the 
existing residence. 

 
Compatibility.  The proposed single family residence is compatible with the 

neighborhood, and its size, bulk, and scale are appropriate to the site and 
neighborhood.  At approximately 69% of the maximum guideline FAR, the size of the 
proposed residence is within the city’s adopted FAR guidelines.  The proposed high-
quality materials are appropriate for the neighborhood.  The fact that finished height the 
proposed residence is less than the allowed building height within the zone and the fact 
that the applicants have proposed the second story addition over the garage, which has 
a lower existing height than the rest of the existing residence, factored significantly in 
the Council’s decision. 

 
Quality Architecture and Materials.  The proposed building is designed with 

quality architectural details and quality materials.  The City Council found the proposed 
restyling of the architecture from the present 1960’s tract house style to a 
Mediterranean design to be a positive benefit to the aesthetics of the property 
individually and the neighborhood as a whole. 

 
Trees.  The proposed project does not include the removal of or significantly 

impact any designated Specimen Tree, Historic Tree or Landmark Tree.   
 
Health, Safety, and Welfare.  The public health, safety, and welfare are 

appropriately protected and preserved in that the neighborhood will be enhanced in 
value and design by the proposed additions. 

 
Good Neighbor Guidelines. The project generally complies with the Good 

Neighbor Guidelines regarding privacy, landscaping, noise and lighting.   
 

The City Council found the arguments of appellants Rinaldo and Lalla Brutoco 
regarding privacy impacts of the second story addition and deck to be unpersuasive.  
The City Council found that the existing guesthouse adjacent to the pool on the Brutoco 
property will shield most of the pool area from the view of the second story additions 
proposed on 1912 Mission Ridge Road.  The City Council further discounted the impact 
of the proposed addition on the privacy of the Brutocos’ master bedroom and bathroom 
due to the distance (estimated variously by Councilmembers to be 50 to 100 feet) 
between the proposed addition and the bedroom and bathroom windows. 

 
Regarding the Bacons’ residence at 1901 East Las Tunas Road, the Council 

finds that the project generally complies with the Good Neighbor Guidelines regarding 



5 
 

privacy, subject to the implementation of the recommended use of translucent glass and 
possible reduction of the size in the windows of the windows on the northern elevation 
of the addition.  While the City Council acknowledged that the proposed project will 
block a portion of the Bacons’ existing views of the city and ocean, the Council found 
that the proposed project did generally comply with the Good Neighbor Guidelines 
based on the proposed location of addition over the garage (which will be less impactful 
to the Bacons than would an addition over other portions of the residence) and the 
relatively minor scale of the roof alteration on the rest of the residence. 

 
Public Views. The development, including proposed structures and grading, will 

preserve any significant public scenic views of and from the hillside.  The proposed 
addition and roof alteration will not meaningfully impact public views. 
 

B. Hillside Design District Findings.  The Council makes the following findings 
pursuant to Santa Barbara Municipal Code section 22.69.050 B. 1-2: 

 
Natural Topography Protection. The proposed development does not 

significantly modify the natural topography of the site or the natural appearance of any 
ridgeline or hillside because the majority of the project consists of a remodel of an 
existing residence and an addition over the existing garage. 

 
Building Scale. The scale of the proposed building maintains a scale and form 

that blends with the hillside by minimizing the visual appearance of structures and the 
overall height of structures through the placement of the proposed addition over the 
existing garage which has a lower ridge height than the rest of the residence.  In 
addition, while the project proposes an increase of the ridge height of the residence, the 
final building height of the residence as a whole is well below the maximum building 
height of 30 feet allowed under the zoning ordinance. 

 
C. California Environmental Quality Act Determination.  The City 

Environmental Analyst evaluated the proposed project and determined the project to be 
categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guideline section 15301, the small 
additions exemption. 
 
SECTION 6.  The City Council grants Project Design Approval to the proposed addition 
and remodel of 1912 Mission Ridge Road as depicted on the set of architectural plans 
received by the Community Development Department on January 23, 2015, as presented 
to the City Council on March 10, 2015, subject to the following directions to the SFDB for 
consideration on Final Design Approval: 
 
  1. Review the design of the north elevation of the proposed addition at 
1912 Mission Ridge Road with consideration as to its impacts on the privacy of the 
residence and private yard of the residence at 1901 East Las Tunas Road, including 
considering of the use of translucent glass for the windows and the possible reduction of 
the size of the windows on the north elevation of the addition. 
 



6 
 

  2. Consider allowing the balcony on the western elevation of the 
addition as an architectural element while minimizing the privacy impacts on the 
neighbors, including the consideration of designing the balcony in order to prevent 
persons from standing on the balcony. 
  
 



Agenda Item No.  18 

File Code No.  380.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 24, 2015  
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Update On Downtown Electrical Infrastructure Reliability Issues From 

Southern California Edison 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    
 
That Council receive a presentation from Southern California Edison on electrical 
infrastructure reliability issues in the Downtown Corridor area. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Council, staff, the Downtown Organization, and area merchants have been engaged in 
a dialogue with Southern California Edison over numerous power outages in the 
downtown area affecting local businesses.  Southern California Edison has offered to 
give an update to the City Council on reliability issues with electrical supply in the 
Downtown Corridor and Southern California Edison’s aging electrical distribution 
system.   
 
 
PREPARED BY: Jim Dewey, Facilities Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  19 
File Code No.  640.07 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of Santa Barbara 

Museum Of Natural History Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council deny the appeal of Mark and Lauren Carey, upholding the Planning 
Commission’s approval of the Conditional Use Permit Amendment and Parking 
Modification for the Santa Barbara Museum of Natural History (2559 Puesta del Sol); 
and direct staff to return with Decision and Findings, including revised conditions of 
approval. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
On January 8, 2015, the Planning Commission unanimously approved a Conditional 
Use Permit Amendment and Parking Modification for the Santa Barbara Museum of 
Natural History’s Master Plan, which anticipates improvements to the property over the 
next 10-15 year period, including site accessibility improvements, replacement of the 
butterfly exhibit and rehabilitation of existing facilities.  Mark and Lauren Carey, adjacent 
neighbors on Las Encinas Road, filed an appeal of the approval citing issues with the 
proposed exterior speaker system, relocated trash enclosure, construction conditions, 
and environmental review. Staff is recommending revisions to the Planning Commission 
conditions of approval to address additional concerns raised by neighbors after the 
appeal was filed. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Project Description 
The proposed Master Plan for the Santa Barbara Museum of Natural History (Museum) 
anticipates the following improvements over the next 10-15 years: improved pedestrian 
accessibility and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) improvements; renovations to 
the Marine/Paleontology/Geology Exhibit Hall and restrooms resulting in a net decrease 
of 194 square feet; replacement of the butterfly exhibit; rehabilitation of Gould Hall; 
conversion of the 475 square-foot MacVeagh Cottage from residential use to 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
March 24, 2015 
Page 2 

 

educational non-residential use; relocation of trash and recycling; new fencing; new 
screening wall along the northeasterly portion of the parking lot; as-built improvements 
and enhancements to existing outdoor activity areas; native habitat restoration; 
landscape improvements, including removal of approximately 2,800 square feet of 
existing asphalt; mechanical equipment upgrades; and interior repairs to existing 
buildings.  The Master Plan results in a net increase in accessible Museum parking 
spaces (from 6 to 7), a net loss of Museum parking spaces overall (from 156 to 155), 
and an addition of four bicycle spaces (from 18 to 22). 
 
The proposal includes annexation of three Museum-owned parcels to the City: APNs 
023-250-039; -066; and -068, totaling approximately five acres (hereinafter referred to 
as the Western Parcels).  The annexation of the Western Parcels would result in all 
Museum operations being within the City and included in the Museum’s Master Plan, 
subject to an updated and consolidated Conditional Use Permit for the Museum.   
Existing development on the Western Parcels includes a single family residence.  The 
Museum proposes to maintain the existing uses of the Western Parcels which consist of 
the use of the single family residence, passive recreation, and Museum educational 
activities. New improvements in the largely undeveloped Western Parcels include an 
enhanced bioswale with an associated boardwalk and overlook, and restoration of the 
woodland area including replacement of non-native plants with native plants.   
 
In addition to annexation of the Western Parcels, the Planning Commission 
recommends annexation of two additional privately-owned parcels, adjacent to the 
Museum property, located at 609 Mission Canyon Road (APNs 023-271-005 and -006) 
and the Mission Canyon Road right-of-way between the current City boundary up to and 
including the intersection of Mission Canyon Road and Puesta del Sol. Annexation of 
the two 609 Mission Canyon Road parcels provides for a more rational City boundary. 
Annexation of the portion of Mission Canyon Road would transfer the right-of-way 
connection between the Mission and Museum, both major visitor-serving institutions, to 
the City.   
 
All of the proposed annexation properties are located within the City’s Sphere of 
Influence, as approved by the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO), and are 
contiguous with properties currently within the City’s jurisdiction.  The Planning 
Commission recommends a General Plan Designation of Low Density Residential 
(Maximum Density: Three Dwelling Units per Acre) and a Zoning Designation of E-1 
(One-Family Residence Zone) for all parcels considered for annexation. 
 
The Planning Commission actions under appeal are:  

• A Conditional Use Permit Amendment to allow for the proposed changes to the 
Museum (SBMC §28.94.030). 
 

• A Parking Modification to provide less than the required number of onsite parking 
spaces (SBMC §28.92.110). 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
March 24, 2015 
Page 3 

 

Subsequent actions requiring City Council approval are: 
• A General Plan Amendment to designate the properties to be annexed as Low 

Density Residential (Maximum Density: Three Dwelling Units per Acre) upon 
annexation. 
 

• A Zoning Map Amendment to zone the properties to be annexed as E-1 (One-
Family Residence Zone) upon annexation. 
 

Subsequent actions requiring LAFCO approval are: 
 

• Reorganization of the properties known as APNs 023-250-039; -066; and -068, 
and APNs 023-271-005 and -006, and a portion of the Mission Canyon Road 
right-of way including Annexation to the City of Santa Barbara and Detachment 
from the Santa Barbara County Fire Protection District, County Service Area 12, 
and the Mission Canyon Lighting District. 
 

Following resolution of the Planning Commission appeal, staff will initiate tax exchange 
agreement negotiations with LAFCO and the County of Santa Barbara to determine 
what portion of the property tax paid on the properties to be annexed (if any) would be 
allocated to the City.  After the tax exchange agreement is negotiated, staff will return to 
City Council to request consent to annex and recommend actions on the General Plan 
Amendment and Zoning Map Amendment for the parcels subject to annexation.  
 
Background 
The Santa Barbara Museum of Natural History was originally founded in 1916 as the 
Museum of Comparative Oology.  In 1922, the Museum was given the original 1.6 acre 
site and the original buildings in the present Museum complex.  That year, the 
Museum’s name was changed to the Santa Barbara Museum of Natural History.  The 
Museum complex was added to over time and the Museum was annexed to the City 
with the Mission in 1968 in the Old Mission-Museum Annexation.  The City has granted 
various approvals for the Museum’s development and use including Conditional Use 
Permits and Substantial Conformance Determinations.   
 
The Museum’s current programs include educational exhibits and educational programs 
available to the public; research advancing understanding of the natural environment 
and human interactions with the natural environment; and collections of archived 
artifacts and specimens used in natural history research.  Existing development on the 
entire 15.43 acre property (including the three parcels proposed for annexation) totals 
approximately 83,000 square feet of gross institutional floor area and 4,500 square feet 
of residential floor area.  The Museum currently provides 156 parking spaces for the 
non-residential uses. 
 
In response to multiple recent substantial conformance determination requests and in 
anticipation of additional development, City staff and the Planning Commission 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
March 24, 2015 
Page 4 

 

requested that the Museum provide a Master Plan outlining projected changes to the 
Museum facilities over a longer time horizon.    
 
The Planning Commission held concept reviews on Master Plan proposals in 2010, 
2011, and 2014.  At the June 2014 hearing, the Planning Commission initiated 
annexation of the Western Parcels in addition to the two privately-owned parcels at 609 
Mission Canyon Road, and provided conceptual comments on a significantly scaled-
down Master Plan proposal compared to the previous versions.     
 
The Planning Commission reviewed the applications for the Conditional Use Permit 
Amendment and Parking Modification on January 8, 2015.  At that hearing, the Planning 
Commission discussed the project conditions and approved the project with amended 
conditions.  The Planning Commission also recommended annexation and associated 
General Plan and Zoning designations for the Museum’s Western Parcels, the two 
privately owned parcels at 609 Mission Canyon Road, and a portion of the Mission 
Canyon Road right-of-way.  The Planning Commission Resolution and Staff Report are 
included as Attachments 1 and 2. 
 
Appeal Issues 
 
The appeal of the Planning Commission’s approval to City Council was filed by Mark and 
Lauren Carey on January 20, 2015.  The Careys are adjacent neighbors of the Museum 
and reside at 2620 Las Encinas Road.   The appeal letter (Attachment 3) includes four 
issues with the proposed project and the project review: the exterior speaker system, the 
trash enclosure, construction conditions, and environmental review.  The Museum’s 
attached letter addresses the subject appeal (Attachment 4).  Each of the appeal issues is 
discussed below.   
 
Exterior Speaker System 
 
The 1989 Conditional Use Permit Amendment for the laboratory addition included a 
condition requiring that the exterior speakers of the public address system be removed 
and not replaced.  As part of the current application, the Museum requested that the 
prohibition on external speakers be replaced with a new condition to allow an exterior 
speaker system for low volume announcements between 8:00 a.m. and 8:30 p.m.  
Announcements would include Museum closing time and upcoming programs, including 
planetarium shows.  The proposed speaker system is designed with exterior speakers 
oriented away from adjacent residential properties and the Museum proposes to limit 
the sound produced by the speakers to not exceed ambient average noise levels by 
more than 2 dBA at any property boundaries with residential uses.  The Appellants are 
asking for the prohibition on exterior speakers to remain.   
 
The standard Conditional Use Permit findings require that the Museum’s uses not be 
materially detrimental to the public peace, health, safety, comfort and general welfare 
and not materially affect property values in the neighborhood.  In general, a 3 dBA 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
March 24, 2015 
Page 5 

 

change in noise level is perceptible by normal human hearing, while a 1-2 dBA change 
in noise levels is not noticed.  For regulatory context, the City’s Municipal Code prohibits 
any unnecessary noises or sounds which are physically annoying; or so harsh, 
prolonged, unnatural, or unusual in their use, time or place to result in physical 
discomfort to inhabitants of the City.  The City General Plan also provides the following 
guidance related to activity and noise in residential neighborhoods and institutional uses 
in residential neighborhoods:  
 

Land Use Element Goal - Neighborhoods: Maintain and enhance 
neighborhoods with community centers where requested, and improved 
connectivity to daily necessities, including limited commercial activity, transit, and 
open spaces while protecting the established character of the neighborhood. 
Maintain or reduce the existing ambient noise levels in single family 
neighborhoods. 
 
Environmental Resources Element Implementation Action ER31.5: Non-
Residential Noise Affecting Residential Neighborhoods. To further General 
Plan policies for maintaining quiet, high quality neighborhoods, require more 
detailed noise assessments for proposed special, conditional, and institutional 
uses with episodic activities and events that may cause noise effects to 
residential neighborhoods. 

 
The appellants and other neighbors along Las Encinas Road expressed concerns with 
the exterior speaker system to the Planning Commission.  The Planning Commission 
ultimately approved the proposed speaker system with conditions that require initial 
testing to verify that the exterior speaker system does not exceed 2 dBA above ambient 
noise levels at any property boundary with a residential use (Condition G.4) and 
operational testing, as required by City staff, to verify that the speakers continue to meet 
this standard (Condition C.2.d.4).  If the speakers cannot be adjusted to meet the 2 dBA 
standard, their use would be limited to emergency announcements only. 
 
The project includes a new, approximately 120-foot long, six-foot high sound wall/visual 
screen (shown on Sheet L3.0) along the northeastern portion of the parking lot to 
attenuate noise and block headlights toward the appellant’s property on Las Encinas 
Road.  To ensure that the wall is constructed in an early phase of the Master Plan, the 
Planning Commission added condition language requiring that the sound wall be 
constructed within one year of approval of the Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
(Condition A.5.a).  The project also includes additional landscaping between the parking 
lot and the residences west of the proposed sound wall/visual screen to provide a 
denser vegetated buffer intended to reduce the effects of Museum operations on other 
neighbors along Las Encinas Road. 
 
With the conditions of approval regarding testing and maintaining the exterior speaker 
system and the additional barrier provided by the sound wall/visual screen, staff 
continues to support the proposed speaker system. 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
March 24, 2015 
Page 6 

 

Trash Enclosure 
 
The project includes relocation of dumpsters and construction of a trash enclosure in 
the southwest portion of the parking lot.  The Museum does not currently have a trash 
enclosure and the existing, unenclosed dumpsters are located west of the existing 
butterfly pavilion.  Marborg currently provides trash and recycling pick-up service at the 
site six days a week.  At the existing location, Marborg trucks back up a narrow drive 
aisle approximately 225 feet with a back-up alarm after emptying the dumpsters.  The 
proposed enclosure would improve the appearance of the Museum grounds and 
proposed relocation of the dumpsters would reduce the amount of time the trucks are 
on site and eliminate the need for trucks to back up for a long distance.  However, the 
dumpsters would be relocated closer to the nearest residential neighbors along Las 
Encinas Road. 
 
The appellant’s property is located approximately 325 feet from the proposed trash 
enclosure.  In the appeal letter, the appellants state that they would prefer to hear the 
Marborg back-up alarms to the routine disposal of trash in the dumpsters by Museum 
staff.  The appellants expressed concerns regarding the trash enclosure to the Planning 
Commission. Planning Commission reviewed the proposed location, discussed other 
location options with the Museum, and concluded that the proposed location was the 
best option for a trash enclosure. 
 
Staff continues to support the new trash enclosure as proposed. 
 
Conditions of Approval 
 
The appeal letter requests construction conditions equivalent to those imposed on other 
projects in the City.  Public comments provided to the Planning Commission specifically 
requested similar conditions as those applied to the Cottage Workforce Housing Project, 
which was a much larger scale project with a continuous construction timeline and also 
included pile driving.  Standard construction conditions were applied to the Planning 
Commission approval of the Museum project.  At the hearing the Planning Commission 
further limited the construction start time to no earlier than 8:00 a.m. (from 7:00 a.m.) 
and limited construction on Saturdays to non-noise-generating activities only (Condition 
F.3).  The Planning Commission also prohibited construction vehicle/ equipment/ 
materials storage and staging in the northern portion of the parking lot near Las Encinas 
Road (Condition F.4). 
 
The Planning Commission conditions of approval were intended to clarify and update 
conditions from five prior Planning Commission resolutions and three prior Substantial 
Conformance Determinations, and add conditions necessary to address the current 
proposal.  Recognizing that high attendance events and weddings are the most 
impactful uses, additional conditions were provided to clearly limit these uses, including 
attendance caps, and time limitations, and address parking for high attendance uses.  
Prior conditions did not expressly limit uses; they established a process where a request 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
March 24, 2015 
Page 7 

 

for change in use was necessary for a staff determination of whether additional 
approvals were required.   
 
The appellants and Jana Zimmer, a neighbor on Las Encinas Road, have had additional 
discussions and correspondence with staff since the appeal was filed suggesting 
changes to the conditions.  In response, staff has included revised recommended 
conditions addressing both construction and operations that provide for additional 
neighborhood protections and clarify the locations of the public trails (Attachment 5).  
 
Environmental Review 
 
The project involves minor physical and operational changes to a long-established facility. 
In 2011, when a much larger proposal was being considered, staff anticipated preparing 
an Initial Study and possible Environmental Impact Report to address traffic and biological 
impacts.  Based on the following, staff determined that the proposed project would not 
result in significant environmental impacts, and qualifies for exemption from further 
environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 
Technical Studies: The following studies were submitted with the project and informed the 
environmental analysis: 
 

• A Phase I Archaeological Resources Report prepared by Applied Earthworks, was 
accepted by the Historic Landmarks Commission on June 18, 2014.  The report 
concluded it was unlikely that intact prehistoric archeological resources would be 
encountered during grading activities.  The conditions of approval include the 
standard cultural resource discovery condition.   
 

• A Biological Assessment of the site was prepared by Watershed Environmental, 
Inc. that evaluated potential short-term, long-term, direct and indirect impacts of the 
project to biological resources, including impacts from the accessibility 
improvements along the creek and in the sensitive habitat area in the Western 
Parcels.  With implementation of the resource protection measures included as part 
of the project, the report concludes that the potential impacts to biological resources 
are less than significant or beneficial.  
 

• A Phase I Historic Structures and Sites Report was accepted by the Historic 
Landmarks Commission on August 11, 2011, a Phase 2 Historic Structures and 
Sites Report was accepted by the Historic Landmarks Commission on April 23, 
2014, and an addendum to the Phase 2 Historic Structures and sites report was 
accepted by the Historic Landmarks Commission on December 3, 2014. The report 
analyzed exterior changes to the buildings and site, including accessibility 
improvements, the new butterfly pavilion, and alteration of the sandstone wall north 
of the complex.  With implementation of the historic resource protection measures 
included as part of the project, the report concludes that the project would not result 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
March 24, 2015 
Page 8 

 

in potentially significant impacts to significant historic resources, including the 
significant cultural landscape. 
 

• A Noise Assessment Technical Report (dated March 2014) and Addenda dated 
July and September 2014 were prepared by Dudek.  These documents analyzed 
the noise impacts of the construction and operation of the project, including the use 
of the proposed exterior speaker system. The report analysis included both average 
noise calculations per City criteria and noise levels at the time they occur per 
General Plan policy ER31.5. The report concludes that the project would be 
consistent with City Noise Element land use criteria and Noise Ordinance 
provisions, and neither project construction nor operations would have a significant, 
adverse noise impact in accordance with City significance thresholds.  
 

• A Traffic and Parking Demand Analysis dated July 15, 2014 was completed by 
Associated Transportation Engineers (ATE) for the project.  The Museum does not 
propose any increase in activities or maximum permitted attendance from what has 
occurred at the site. The minor physical and operational changes to the Museum 
would not exceed existing permitted attendance or operations levels and would not 
result in a net increase in trip generation beyond the level of existing permitted 
operations. The project would not have a significant effect on traffic. 

 
Categorical Exemptions. The State CEQA Guidelines identify the following applicable 
classes of projects that are exempt from CEQA review. 
 

• Museum Alternations, Western Residence, As-built Outdoor Activity Areas, 
Landscape Improvements, Asphalt Removal. Section 15301 exempts the 
operation, maintenance, permitting, or minor alteration of existing structures, 
facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or 
no expansion of use.  The listed examples include: interior and exterior alterations 
involving such things as interior partitions, plumbing, and electrical and additions to 
existing structures of up to 2,500 square feet, and conversion of a single family 
residence to office use.  This exemption applies to the alterations to the Museum 
campus buildings and structures; abatement of violations for the Western 
Residence; permitting of the as-built and proposed changes to the outdoor activity 
areas; and landscape improvements, including asphalt removal.  The Museum 
renovations result in a net reduction of floor area and a net reduction in 
impermeable surface area. 

 
• Butterfly Exhibit Replacement. Section 15302 exempts replacement and 

reconstruction of existing structures where the new structure will be located on the 
same site as the structure replaced and will have substantially the same purpose 
and capacity as the structure replaced.  This exemption applies to the replacement 
of the Butterfly Exhibit. 

 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
March 24, 2015 
Page 9 

 

• Creekside Terrace, Trash Enclosure, Sound Wall, Fencing, Conversion of 
MacVeagh Cottage, Parking Lot Changes, Sidewalk. Section 15303 exempts 
construction and location of new small structures and the conversion of existing 
small structures from one use to another.  This exemption applies to the new 
creekside terrace; accessibility improvements; trash enclosure; sound wall; new 
fencing; conversion of MacVeagh Cottage from residential to non-residential use; 
changes to the parking lot; and right-of-way improvements, including the new 
sidewalk. 

 
• Conditional Use Permit Amendment and Parking Modification. Section 15305 

exempts minor alterations in land use limitation, which do not result in any changes 
to land use and density.  This exemption applies to the Conditional Use Permit 
Amendment and requested Parking Modification. 

 
• Habitat Restoration. Section 15307 exempts City actions to assure maintenance, 

restoration, enhancement, or protection of the environment where the regulatory 
process involves procedures for protection of the environment.  This exemption 
applies to the Western Parcels habitat restoration.  

 
• Annexation. Section 13519 exempts annexations of individual small parcels of the 

minimum size to allow for facilities exempted by Section 15303 (New Construction 
or Conversion of Small Structures), including single-family residences, accessory 
structures, utilities, and street improvements.  The properties proposed for 
annexation (the lots known as APNs 023-250-039; -066; and -068, and APNs 023-
271-005 and -006, and a portion of the Mission Canyon Road right-of way) allow for 
those facilities exempted by 15303, and, therefore, qualify for an exemption with the 
annexation by Section 15319. 

 
Based on staff’s analysis, no further environmental review is required. 
 
Parking Modification 
 
Although the appeal letter does not identify the approved Parking Modification as an 
issue, it was part of the Planning Commission’s action and City Council’s action on the 
project, including the Parking Modification, is de novo.   
 
The City’s Zoning Ordinance recognizes that, in many cases, it is impractical to 
establish minimum parking requirements for uses permitted with Conditional Use 
Permits and that different performance and development standards must be applied to 
each individual facility.  Regardless, the parking chapter of the Zoning Ordinance 
provides parking requirements for general uses.  For the Museum, the total parking 
requirement based on commercial, office and auditorium use ordinance ratios is 287 
spaces.  The Museum currently provides 156 spaces and proposes a reduction in 
parking by 1 space for a total of 155 automobile parking spaces for the Museum use.  
Because of the reduction, a Parking Modification is required.  The applicant provided a 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
March 24, 2015 
Page 10 

 

Traffic, Circulation, and Parking Report that projects a future peak parking demand of 
137 spaces for regular use; therefore, the loss of one Museum parking space will not 
cause an increase in demand for parking space in the immediate area. Like the Parking 
Modification, the Conditional Use Permit requires a finding that adequate access and 
off-site parking is provided in a manner that the demands are adequately met without 
altering the character of the public streets at any time.  Because additional parking is 
needed during some high attendance events, conditions of approval require that the 
Museum provide offsite, out of canyon parking and shuttles. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff believes the project and the recommended conditions provide a reasonable 
balance between the continuing operations of an important regional institution and 
neighborhood protections.  Staff recommends that City Council deny the appeal, 
upholding the Planning Commission’s approvals of the project and direct staff to 
prepare a resolution documenting the Council’s Decision and Findings, including 
revised conditions of approval in Attachment 5, and return to Council for adoption. 
 
NOTE:  The project file and plans were delivered separately to City Council for review and 
are available for public review at the City Clerk’s office. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Planning Commission Resolution 002-15 

2. Planning Commission Staff Report, dated December 23, 
2014 

3. Appeal Letter, dated January 20, 2015 
 4. Appeal Response Letters from the Santa Barbara Museum 

of Natural History, dated January 26, 2015 and March 3, 
2015 

5. Recommended Revised Conditions of Approval 
 
PREPARED BY: Dan Gullett, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Department Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 1









































ATTACHMENT 2







































ATTACHMENT 3







ATTACHMENT 4















DS

DS

DS

DSS

DSS

DSS

DSS

DSS

DS 

DSS

DSS

DSS

DSS

DSS

DSS

DS

DS

DS 
DS 

DS 
DS DS 

DS DS 

DS 
DS 

DS 

DS 

DS 

DSS
DSS

DSS
DSS

DS 

DS 

DS 

DSS

DSS

DSS

DSS

DSS

DSS

DSS

DSS

DSS
DS

DS

50'

50'

4" ABS OUTLET

3" IRON PIPE OUTLET

4" ABS OUTLET

AC

AP
N 

02
3-

27
1-

00
5

SANTA BARBARA CITY LIMITS (APPROXIMATE LOCATION)

SANTA BARBARA CITY LIMITS (APPROXIMATE LOCATION)

.

320
310

30
0

30
0

300

290

280

280

290

.
AD

ADADAD
CNC

312.13

310

310

310

300

290

29
0

280

280

290

290

270

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DSS
DSS

DS

DSS

DS
DS

DS

DSS
DS

DSS

GRAV
EL

FS

DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

36
0

35
0

34
0

33
0

32
0

310

30
0

290

30
0

300
310

320

360

350

340

330

31
0

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

300

310

TB

TB
TB

TB

TB

TB

TB
TB

TB
TB

TB TB TB
TB

TB
TB

TB

TB

TB

TB TB
TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB TB TB
TB

TB
TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

TB

330

320

32
0

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

DS
FS

BIRD
MEWS

wall fountain

S

S
Storage

80 sf

entry

(E)
storage shed

exitbutterfly garden
exhibit

creeks terrace

(E)
HC parking(E)

parking

backyard

chumash
village

life

native riparian
garden

(E)
picnic area to

remain

(E)
whale

courtyard

(E)
bus stop

fort
building

area

(E)
pavement

(E)
pavement

(E)
pavement

paleo
dig area

(E)
event area

tree
house

(E)
deck

"stage"

Eggshell
"Donors Circle"

(E)
activity
area

(E)
pavement(E)

pavement

(E)
pavement

(E)
pavement

(E)
pavement

(E)
pavement

(E)
activity
area

(E)
water

feature

(E)
pavement

(N) gate

EQ
U

IP.
EQ

U
IP.

Broder H
all

Bird Hall

Library

Mammal
Exhibit

Hall

Cartwright
Exhibit

Hall

Administration

Luria
Hall

Entry
Courtyard

Marine/

Paleontology/

Geology
Hall

Gould
Exhibit

Hall

R
estroom

s

Education
Center

Farrand
Hall

Planetarium &

Living Planet

Fleischmann

Auditorium

Collections & Research

Center

MacVeaghHouse

RaptorMews

MacVeagh

Cottage

trash
enclosure

deck

(E) residence
(E)

structure

0 40 80 FT

(E) unimproved trail

(E) unimproved trail to be abandoned or rerouted

(E) unimproved trail within "Museum fee area"

(N) unimproved trail

(N) paved path or boardwalk

(E) paved path

(N) split rail fence

legend 

(N) relocated wood fence

Museum fee area

woodland habitat restoration area

(E)
driveway

(E)
driveway

(E)
parking

PUESTA DEL SOL

(E)
parking

(N)
HC parking

LA
S 

EN
C

IN
AS

 R
D

(N) gate

(N) gates

(N) gate

(E)
parking

(E)
parking

(E)
path

(E)
driveway

Refer to sheets L1.0, L1.1, L1.2 for additional information on proposed site improvements. 

 trails to be revegeteded as
part of future habitat restoration

trail section proposed to be 
rerouted outside existing driveway

edge of future pathway 
along Puesta Del Sol

alternative trail connection

MISSION CREEK

 building envelope

site plan 1" = 40'-0"1

L0.2
TRAILS FOR
PUBLIC USE

Principal
Project Manager

Drawn By
Reviewed By

Job No.

Revisions:
No. Date By

c  2014 VAI Van Atta Associates, Inc.

 
 

 

VAN ATTA Associates, Inc.
Landscape  Architecture  +  Planning
235 Palm Avenue, 
Santa Barbara, California 93101

July 17, 2014

www.saarch.com

Smith Tower
506 Second Ave

Seattle, WA 98104
tel (206) 443-3448, fax (206) 443-3471 

Suite 700

S
an

ta
 B

ar
ba

ra
 M

us
eu

m
 o

f N
at

ur
al

 H
is

to
ry

S
ch

em
at

ic
 D

es
ig

n
 S

an
ta

 B
ar

ba
ra

, C
al

ifo
rn

ia

SVA
GG

GG/LF

10-16

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

MASTER PLAN
-DART

Submission

Feb 25, 2015



 

 

 
RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 

ANNEXATION, CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AMENDMENT, PARKING MODIFICATION 
JANUARY 8, 2015 

 
 
I. In consideration of the project approval granted by the Planning Commission and for the benefit of the 

owner and occupants of the Real Property, the owners and occupants of adjacent real property and the 
public generally, the following terms and conditions are imposed on the use, possession, and enjoyment 
of the Real Property: 

A. Order of Development.  In order to accomplish the proposed development, the following steps 
shall occur:  

1. Obtain all additional annexation approvals.  Refer to Condition B “Approval Contingent 
upon Annexation.” 

2. Obtain all required design review approvals.   

3. Pay Land Development Team Recovery Fee (30% of all planning fees, as calculated by 
staff) at time of building permit application. 

4. Record any required documents  

a. Recorded Conditions Agreement (Section C.1.). 

b. Dedications prior to completion of public improvements (Item E.1.b.). 

c. Water Rights Assignment (E.1.c.). 

d. Agreement to Construct (if required). 

5. Permits. 

a. Submit applications for, obtain Building Permits (BLD), and construct the 
soundwall/visual screen along the northeasterly portion of the parking lot and 
associated landscaping within one year of approval of the amended Conditional 
Use Permit. 

b. Submit applications for and obtain Building Permits (BLD) to address the as-built 
garage conversion and any additions or modifications to the Western Residence 
that were completed without required permits.  

c. Submit public improvement plans for all required public improvements, an 
engineer’s estimate of public improvements and application with fees for a Public 
Works Permit (PBW) and either complete said improvements or enter into an 
Agreement to Construct and post bonds for public improvements. 

d. Submit applications for and obtain a Building Permits (BLD) for construction of 
the remainder of the approved development and complete said development.   

Details on implementation of these steps are provided throughout the conditions of approval. 

ATTACHMENT 5



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 2 
 

 

B. Approval Contingent upon Annexation.  Approval of the project elements related to the 
Western Parcels is contingent upon approval of the General Plan Map and Zoning Map 
Amendments by the City Council and approval of the Annexation of the Western Parcels by the 
Local Agency Formation Commission and completion of that annexation. 

C. Recorded Conditions Agreement.  The Owner shall execute a written instrument, which shall 
be prepared by Planning staff, reviewed as to form and content by the City Attorney, Community 
Development Director and Public Works Director, recorded in the Office of the County 
Recorder, and shall include the following:   
1. Approved Development.  The additional development of the Real Property approved by 

the Planning Commission on January 8, 2015, in addition to the existing development 
shown on the site plan submitted by the Applicant in Sheet A1.11 is limited to the 
following improvements: improved pedestrian accessibility and Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) improvements; renovations to the Marine/Paleontology/Geology 
Exhibit Hall and restrooms resulting in a net decrease of 194 square feet; replacement of 
the butterfly exhibit; rehabilitation of Gould Hall; conversion of the 475 square-foot 
MacVeagh Cottage from residential use to educational non-residential use; relocation of 
trash and recycling; new fencing; new soundwall/visual screen along the northeasterly 
portion of the parking lot; as-built improvements and enhancements to existing outdoor 
activity areas; native habitat restoration; landscape improvements, including removal of 
approximately 2,800 square feet of existing asphalt; mechanical equipment upgrades; and 
interior repairs to existing buildings.  The Master Plan results in a net increase in 
accessible Museum parking spaces (from 6 to 7), a net loss of Museum parking spaces 
overall (from 156 to 155), and an addition of four bicycle spaces (from 18 to 22).  The 
following Assessor Parcel Numbers are subject to the terms of the Conditional Use 
Permit: APNs 023-272-003 and -004.  Upon the completion of the proposed annexation, 
the following Assessor Parcel Numbers shall also be subject to the Conditional Use 
Permit: APNs 023-250-039; -056; -066; and -068 (hereinafter referred to as the Western 
Parcels). Existing development on the Western Parcels includes a single family residence.  
The project includes maintenance of the existing uses of the Western Parcels which 
consist of the use of the single family residence, passive recreation including public use 
of the trail network (referenced as footpaths on plan sheet L1.0), and Museum 
educational activities.  The project includes the improvements shown on the plans signed 
by the chairperson of the Planning Commission on said date and on file at the City of 
Santa Barbara.   

2. Operational Conditions.  The following conditions apply to the overall operations of the 
Museum and the use of the site. 

a. Allowed Uses.  The following non-residential uses are allowed on the subject 
property: 

(1) General Museum & Educational Use.   Research; collections 
maintenance; adult classes; children's camps; docent trainings; attendance 
by visitors and museum members to exhibits; Board of Trustees, 
Committee and volunteer meetings; appointments with staff by vendors 
and members of the public; attendance by school groups, children’s 
classes, children’s camps, evening films and lectures; special planetarium 



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 3 
 

 

shows and evening star parties, SBCC and UCSB classes; and visitation 
by researchers and persons by appointment, including professional 
symposia or similar gatherings. 

(2) Community Uses. Meetings; town hall discussions; memorials; wedding 
ceremonies; weddings with receptions; fundraising events; and lectures or 
similar activities organized by community groups other than the Museum. 

(3) High-Attendance Events.  Museum-sponsored gatherings often held on 
weekends, which are not part of regularly scheduled or routine operations.  
Currently these include the Wine Festival (June), The Museum League Art 
Walk (September), the Tribal and Folk Art Marketplace (December), and 
an additional event associated with a specific exhibition or program 
offering (e.g. the Tinkertoy Family Festival held in summer 2013). 

b. Annual Attendance and Maximum Capacity.   
(1) The maximum annual attendance including general admissions, members, 

volunteers, education programs, research programs, outside group use, 
special events, and weddings and memorials shall be monitored by the 
Museum and shall not exceed 165,147 people. 

(2) The maximum number of people allowed on-site at any one time shall not 
exceed 1,400 and shall be monitored by the Museum staff at Museum 
entrance and exit. 

c. Special Event Limitations.   
(1) High Attendance events shall not exceed a total of four (4) events, nine 

(9) days, or and 11,588 attendees per year, whichever is more restrictive.  

(2) The Museum shall continue to coordinate scheduling of high attendance 
events with the Santa Barbara Women’s Club and the Santa Barbara 
Botanic Gardens to minimize traffic, parking, and fire evacuation issues. 

(3) If a High Attendance Event is anticipated to potentially exceed the on-site 
parking supply, the procedures for addressing parking and transportation 
during special events in the Museum’s Traffic and Parking Procedures 
shall be implemented as appropriate. 

(3)(4) Wedding receptions shall be scheduled for Saturdays only and shall not 
exceed 15 per calendar year. 

(4)(5) Wedding reception attendance shall not exceed 175 guests per wedding.  

(5)(6) Amplified music shall be limited to the Fleishman Auditorium for 
wedding receptions and shall commence no earlier than 4:30 p.m. 

(6)(7) The only outdoor amplified sound permitted associated with events is 
amplification of voices of wedding ceremony participants so wedding 
guests can hear the ceremony. 



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 4 
 

 

(7)(8) An additional non-Museum staff security officer shall be present for the 
duration of all wedding receptions to help ensure that event guests 
comply with Museum policies and requirements. 

(8)(9) Town hall discussions; memorials; wedding ceremonies; wedding 
receptions; fundraising events; and lectures or similar activities organized 
by community groups other than the Museum shall end no later than 9:30 
p.m. and guests shall vacate the site by 10:00 p.m.  All other evening 
events shall end no later than10:00 p.m. and all guests shall vacate the 
site by 10:30 p.m. 

(9)(10) Outdoor post-event clean-up activities south of the creek are limited to 
the period between 8:30 a.m. and 7:00 p.m.; post-event clean-up activities 
outside Fleischmann Auditorium are limited to the period between 8:30 
a.m. and 10:00 p.m. 

(10)(11) Event guests shall not loiter in the parking lot or in front of the 
Museum. 

d. General Operations.  
(1) Amplified music is prohibited outdoors. 

(2) All music must be stopped by 9:30 p.m. each day. 

(3) The use of external public address speakers is limited to the hours between 
8:00 a.m. and 8:30 p.m. except for announcements necessary for public 
safety. 

(4) The external public address system must be maintained such that noise 
from the public address system does not exceed ambient exterior noise 
levels by more than 2 dBA at any property boundary with a residential 
use, except for emergency announcements.  The Museum shall comply 
with any City Planning Division staff request that public address system 
be tested to ensure compliance with this condition. 

(5) Public gatherings and picnicking are prohibited in the parking lot. 

(5)(6) Regular Museum admission hours are between 10:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., 
seven days a week. Special activities and programs may occur outside 
these hours. 

(7) The parking lot shall be locked and access to the parking lot shall be 
limited after 11:00 p.m. and before 6:45 a.m., seven days a week. 

(8) The use of chainsaws, skip loaders, leaf blowers and other noisy 
equipment is prohibited before 9:00 a.m., seven days a week. 

(9) The use of leaf blowers is prohibited before 9:00 a.m. and after 5:00 p.m. 
Monday through Saturday and any time on Sundays and national holidays.  

(6)(10) There shall be no storage of any materials, trailers, landscape trimmings, 
construction debris, temporary structures, refuse bins, or vehicles, of any 
kind on the Las Encinas Road easement 



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 5 
 

 

(11) No recreational vehicles, boats, or trailers shall be stored on the Real 
Propertyproject site. 

(7)(12) No animal carcass preparation or decomposition activities, or burial, shall 
be permitted on the project site. 

(8)(13) The Museum shall implement the following:  

a. Procedures and Requirements for Emergency Response as 
approved by the Museum President June 22, 2014 and on file at the 
City. 

b. Procedures and Requirement for Traffic and Parking Management 
approved by the Museum President on November 25, 2014 and on 
file at the City. 

c. Procedures and Requirements for Events approved by the Museum 
President on December 1, 2014 and on file at the City. 
 

Any proposed changes to these documents shall be reviewed by City Staff 
for consideration of substantial conformance. 

e. Reporting.  
(1) Submit to City staff an annual report of monthly attendance data of the 

three categories of use allowed and defined under this CUP: 

a. General Museum and Educational Uses 
b. Community Uses, including the number of weddings with 

receptions and the number of attendees at weddings with 
receptions. 

c. High Attendance Events, identifying the number of these events, 
attendance at each, and statistics on use of off-site parking. 
 

(2) Maintain and submit to City staff upon request all complaints submitted to 
the Museum and the Museum’s responses to complaints. 

3. Public Access.  The Museum shall continue to provide free public access to the existing 
and proposed trail network on the western portion of the Museum property (referenced as 
footpaths on Sheet L1.0), excluding the paths within the new fenced areafenced fee area. 
identified as Detail 13 (on the Museum campus side) on Sheet L1. 0.  The free public 
access trail network is illustrated in the plans on file as required by Condition E.2.c. 

4. Development Rights Restrictions.  Other than the improvements shown on the approved 
plans and improvements within the building envelope, the Owner shall not develop the 
portion of the Real Property labeled “Native Woodland Garden” on Sheet L0.1.  Tree 
protection and replacement shall be consistent with the Watershed Environmental, Inc. 
report dated March 6, 2014.  The Museum shall continue to be responsible for 
maintenance of the restricted area, and compliance with orders of the Fire Department.  
Any brush clearance shall be performed without the use of earth moving equipment.   

Other than elements of the subject project and proposals within the building envelope 
shown on Sheet L0.1, future development proposals within the restricted area shall be 



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 6 
 

 

subject to following Mission Canyon Community Plan Development Standards as they 
existed at the time of the Planning Commission approval of the Conditional Use Permit, 
in addition to applicable City policies: 
 
DevStd BIO-MC-3.3 Development shall be required to include the following 
Environmentally Sensitive Habitat (ESH) buffer areas: 
• Creeks and streams, including steelhead critical habitat streams–50 feet as measured 

from the geologic top of creek bank. 
• Central and Southern Coast Live Oak Riparian Forest and Woodland, Coast Live 

Oak/Olive Riparian Woodland, California Sycamore Riparian Forest, and Central 
Coast Arroyo Willow Riparian Forest–50 feet from edge of canopy. 

• Coast Live Oak Woodland and Forest–25 feet from edge of canopy. 
• Habitats containing Nuttall’s scrub oak or other special status animal or plant species 

or rare natural communities–25 feet minimum, full extent to be determined on a case-
by-case basis. 

• Wetland Habitats–50 feet from edge of wetland habitat. 
• Buffer areas from other types of ESH shall be determined on a case-by- case basis. 
 
These buffers areas may be adjusted upward or downward on a case-by-case basis given 
site-specific conditions, such as slopes, biological resources, and erosion potential, as 
evaluated and determined by the City. 
 
DevStd BIO-MC-3.4: Where development cannot be sited to avoid ESH, development in 
ESH and ESH buffer areas shall be designed and carried out in a manner that protects the 
sensitive habitat areas to the maximum extent feasible. 
 
DevStd BIO-MC-8.2: The stream or creek buffer area shall be indicated on all site and 
grading plans. All ground disturbance and native vegetation removal shall be minimized 
in the buffer area to the maximum extent feasible. 

 
5. Uninterrupted Water Flow.  The Owner shall allow for the continuation of any historic 

flow of water onto the Real Property including, but not limited to, swales, natural 
watercourses, conduits and any access road, as appropriate. 

6. Landscape Plan Compliance.  The Owner shall comply with the Landscape Plan 
approved by the Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC).  Such plan shall not be 
modified unless prior written approval is obtained from the HLC.  The landscaping on the 
Real Property shall be provided and maintained in accordance with said landscape plan, 
including any tree protection measures.  If said landscaping is removed for any reason 
without approval by the HLC, the owner is responsible for its immediate replacement.   

7. Storm Water Pollution Control and Drainage Systems Maintenance.  Owner shall 
maintain the drainage system and storm water pollution control devices in a functioning 
state and in accordance with the Storm Water BMP Guidance Manual and Operations and 
Maintenance Procedure Plan approved by the Creeks Division.  Should any of the 
project’s surface or subsurface drainage structures or storm water pollution control 
methods fail to capture, infiltrate, and/or treat water, or result in increased erosion, the 



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 7 
 

 

Owner shall be responsible for any necessary repairs to the system and restoration of the 
eroded area.  Should repairs or restoration become necessary, prior to the commencement 
of such repair or restoration work, the Owner shall submit a repair and restoration plan to 
the Community Development Director to determine if an amendment or a new Building 
Permit is required to authorize such work.  The Owner is responsible for the adequacy of 
any project-related drainage facilities and for the continued maintenance thereof in a 
manner that will preclude any hazard to life, health, or damage to the Real Property or 
any adjoining property. 

8. Pesticide or Fertilizer Usage.  The use of pesticides or fertilizer shall be prohibited 
within any area that drains directly into Mission Creek. 

9. Transportation Demand Management.  The following alternative transportation 
incentives shall be implemented reduce parking demand and traffic impacts.   

a. Bus Passes.  The Museum shall provide MTD bus passes free of charge to 
employees who request them for travel to and from work.  Notice of the free 
passes shall be provided to existing employees and new employees when they are 
hired.   

b. Housing Priority.  The Museum shall provide rental preference of the onsite 
residential units in the following order: (1) Museum employees, (2) persons who 
currently live on the South Coast or households with a member employed on the 
South Coast; and (3) the general public. 

c. Guaranteed Ride Home.  In the event of an emergency or work requirement that 
interferes with the normal alternative transportation arrangements of any 
employee, the Museum shall guarantee a free ride home. 

d. Flexible Work Hours.  The Museum shall encourage staggered or flexible work 
hours that allow staff to arrive and depart at times which are outside the morning 
and afternoon peak traffic hours as established by the City of Santa Barbara 
(currently Monday through Friday 7-9 a.m. and 4-6 p.m.). 

e. Bicycle Parking. A total of 22 bicycle parking spaces are to be provided on-site, 
including at least four covered bicycle parking spaces for employees only.  Final 
rack locations and types of racks shall be approved by City Transportation staff 
and Historic Landmarks Commission.   

D. Design Review.  The project, including public improvements, is subject to the review and 
approval of the Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC).  The HLC shall not grant project design 
approval until the following Planning Commission land use conditions have been satisfied.  

1. Historic Structures Report.  All project features described in the Historic Structures and 
Sites Report(s) accepted by Historic Landmarks Commission shall be implemented to the 
satisfaction of the City Urban Historian. 

2. Tree Protection and Replacement.  Include a note on the plans that the tree protection 
and replacement project components included in the Watershed Environmental, Inc. 
report dated March 6, 2014, shall be implemented.  All trees not indicated for removal on 
the approved landscape plan shall be preserved, protected, and maintained.  



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 8 
 

 

3. Landscape Plan. Identify on the Landscape Plan the portion of the Real Property outside 
of the Las Encinas Road easement designated as “Proposed Restoration/Enhancement 
Area” on the Exhibit labeled “Revised Figure 7 Woodland Habitat 
Restoration/Enhancement Area” in the Biological Assessment prepared by Watershed 
Environmental, Inc., dated July 10, 2014, so that those portions of the Real Property 
remain in their natural state.   

4. Public Improvements.  General Plan Implementation Actions HR6.1, HR6.2, and HR6.3 
shall be considered in the review of proposed public improvements on Puesta del Sol.  

5. Exterior Lighting. All new exterior lighting shall conform with Municipal Code Chapter 
22.75 and shall be shielded and directed away from the tree canopy, the creek bed, creek 
banks, and undisturbed woodland habitat. 

6. Parking Lot Screening.  A soundwall/visual screen shall be provided to buffer the 
adjacent residences along Las Encinas Road at the location shown on Sheet L3.0. 

6.7. Bus Loading/Unloading.  The Museum shall designate a bus loading/unloading area 
near the Museum entrance. 

7.8. Screened Backflow Device.  All new backflow devices for fire sprinklers and/or 
irrigation systems shall be provided in a location screened from public view or included 
in the exterior wall of the building, as approved by the HLC. 

8.9. Trash Enclosure Provision.  A trash enclosure with adequate area for recycling 
containers (an area that allows for a minimum of 50 percent of the total capacity for 
recycling containers) shall be provided on the Real Property and screened from view 
from surrounding properties and the street.   

Dumpsters and containers with a capacity of 1.5 cubic yards or more shall not be placed 
within five (5) feet of combustible walls, openings, or roofs, unless protected with fire 
sprinklers. 

E. Requirements Prior to Permit Issuance.  The Owner shall submit the following, or evidence of 
completion of the following, for review and approval by the Department listed below prior to the 
issuance of any permit for the project other than building permits for the soundwall/visual screen 
and required alterations to the Western Residence.  Some of these conditions may be waived for 
demolition or rough grading permits, at the discretion of the department listed.  Please note that 
these conditions are in addition to the standard submittal requirements for each department. 
1. Public Works Department. 

a. Approved Public Improvement Plans.  Public Improvement Plans as identified 
in condition E.1.d “Public Improvements” shall be submitted to the Public Works 
Department for review and approval.  Upon acceptance of completed public 
improvement plans, a Building permit may be issued if the Owner has bonded for 
public improvements and executed the Agreement to Construct and Install 
Improvements (Not a Subdivision). 

b. Dedication.  Owner shall submit an application and fees to the City Public Works 
Department for the following dedications and shall complete dedication prior to 
acceptance of public improvements. 



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 9 
 

 

(1) Owner shall grant an easement for right of way purposes to the City of 
Santa Barbara northeast of the face of the existing historic wall on APN 
023-271-004 at the intersection of Puesta Del Sol and Mission Canyon 
Road. 

(2) Owner shall dedicate to the City of Santa Barbara a new onsite ten-foot-
wide sewer easement centered over the actual sewer main with right of 
access and reservation to the owner to continue use of a butterfly exhibit at 
the existing location over the sewer main. 

c. Water Rights Assignment Agreement.  The Owner shall assign to the City of 
Santa Barbara the exclusive right to extract ground water from under the Real 
Property in an Agreement Assigning Water Extraction Rights.  Engineering 
Division Staff prepares said agreement for the Owner’s signature.   

d. Public Improvements.  The Owner shall submit C-1 public improvement or 
Public Works plans for construction of improvements along the property frontage 
on Puesta del Sol.  Plans for public improvements shall be prepared by a licensed 
civil engineer registered in the State of California and shall be submitted prior to 
or concurrent with (but separately from) plans submitted for a Building Permit.  
As determined by the Public Works Department, the improvements shall include 
the following: 

(1) Installation of frontage improvements along Puesta del Sol from the 
western extent of the sandstone wall on Puesta del Sol to the driveway 
entrance of the Carriage House.  An in-lieu fee shall be provided to fund 
the remaining Puesta del Sol frontage improvements.  The improvements 
shall include a minimum of six-foot wide pathway, and minimum of four-
foot wide parkway.   

(2) Design of all frontage improvements shall be designed to protect existing 
trees located at the property frontage in the street as required by the Urban 
Forest Superintendent. 

(3) The frontage improvements shall include the installation of one or two 
new City Standard Dome Style street lights.  The locations shall be as 
approved and modified by the City Engineer.  The lighting changes on 
Puesta Del Sol will be either to install one 20' Type B City Standard street 
light or two 14' Type A City Standard pedestrian lights. The existing SCE 
cobra-head shall be removed. 

(4) The entire width of Puesta Del Sol along the Museum frontage shall be 
slurry sealed and striped. 

e. In-lieu Fee for Sidewalk.  The Owner shall pay $7,000 of in-lieu fees for the 
future construction of the remaining pathway frontage improvements on the 
easterly end of Puesta del Sol.  

f. Construction-Related Truck Trips.  Construction-related truck trips for trucks 
with a gross vehicle weight rating of three tons or more shall not be scheduled 



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 10 
 

 

during peak hours (7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.) in order to 
help reduce truck traffic on adjacent streets and roadways. 

g. Agreement to Construct and Install Improvements.  Prior to building permit 
issuance, the Owner shall either complete public improvements or submit 
preliminary plans for the required public improvement with engineers estimate, 
securities for construction and execute an Agreement to Construct. 

h. Encroachment Permits.  Any encroachment or other permits from the City or 
other jurisdictions (State, Flood Control, County, etc.) for the construction of 
improvements (including any required appurtenances) within their rights of way 
or easements shall be obtained by the Owner. 

2. Community Development Department.   
a. Recordation of Agreements.  The Owner shall provide evidence of recordation 

of the written instrument that includes all of the Recorded Conditions identified in 
Condition C “Recorded Conditions Agreement” to the Community Development 
Department prior to issuance of any building permits. 

b. Unpermitted Work. The Building Permit scope of work shall address the as-built 
garage conversion and any additions or modifications to the Western Residence 
that were completed without required permits.  

b.c. Trail Network.  Include a plan sheet illustrating the trail network on the western 
portion of the Museum property as shown within the Proposed 
Restoration/Enhancement Area on the exhibit labeled “Revised Figure 7 
Woodland Habitat Restoration/Enhancement Area” in the Biological Assessment 
prepared by Watershed Environmental, Inc., dated July 10, 2014. The trail 
network shall be clearly labeled as public access as provided in Condition C.3. 

c.d. Arborist’s Monitoring.  Submit to the Planning Division an executed contract 
with a qualified arborist for monitoring of construction/demolition with ground 
disturbance in close proximity to existing trees.  The contract shall include a 
schedule for the arborist's presence during grading and construction activities, and 
is subject to the review and approval of the Planning Division. 

d.e. Contractor and Subcontractor Notification.  The Owner shall notify in writing 
all contractors and subcontractors of the site rules, restrictions, and Conditions of 
Approval.  Submit a draft copy of the notice to the Planning Division for review 
and approval. 

e.f. Letter of Commitment for Neighborhood Notification Prior to Construction.  
The Owner shall submit to the Planning Division a letter of commitment to 
provide the written notice specified in Condition EF.1 “Neighborhood 
Notification Prior to Construction” below.  The language of the notice and the 
mailing list shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning Division prior to 
being distributed.  An affidavit signed by the person(s) who compiled the mailing 
list shall be submitted to the Planning Division. 



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 11 
 

 

f.g. Design Review Requirements.  Plans shall show all design, landscape and tree 
protection elements, as approved by the appropriate design review board and as 
outlined in Section D “Design Review,” and all elements/specifications shall be 
implemented on-site. 

g.h. Conditions on Plans/Signatures.  The final Resolution shall be provided on a 
full size drawing sheet as part of each of the drawing sets.  Each condition shall 
have a sheet and/or note reference to verify condition compliance.  If the 
condition relates to a document submittal, indicate the status of the submittal (e.g., 
Final Map submitted to Public Works Department for review).  A statement shall 
also be placed on the sheet as follows:  The undersigned have read and understand 
the required conditions, and agree to abide by any and all conditions which are 
their usual and customary responsibility to perform, and which are within their 
authority to perform. 

 Signed: 

 _____________________________________________________________ 
 Property Owner       Date 

 _____________________________________________________________ 
 Contractor    Date   License No. 

 _____________________________________________________________ 
 Architect    Date   License No. 

 _____________________________________________________________ 
 Engineer     Date   License No. 

F. Construction Implementation Requirements.  All of these construction requirements shall be 
carried out in the field by the Owner and/or Contractor for the duration of the project 
construction, including demolition and grading.  
1. Neighborhood Notification Prior to Construction.  At least twenty (20) days prior to 

commencement of construction, the contractor shall provide written notice to all property 
owners, businesses, and residents within 300 feet of the project area.  The notice shall 
contain a description of the project, the construction schedule, including days and hours 
of construction, the name and phone number of the Contractor(s), site rules and 
Conditions of Approval pertaining to construction activities, and any additional 
information that will assist Building Inspectors, Police Officers and the public in 
addressing problems that may arise during construction.   

2. Construction Contact Sign.  Immediately after Building permit issuance, signage shall 
be posted at the points of entry to the site that list the contractor(s) name, contractor(s) 
telephone number(s), construction work hours, site rules, and construction-related 
conditions, to assist Building Inspectors and Police Officers in the enforcement of the 
conditions of approval.  The font size shall be a minimum of 0.5 inches in height.  Said 
sign shall not exceed six feet in height from the ground if it is free-standing or placed on 
a fence.  It shall not exceed 24 square feet if in a multi-family or commercial zone or six 
square feet if in a single family zone. 



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 12 
 

 

3. Construction Hours.  Construction (including preparation for construction work) shall 
only be permitted Monday through Friday between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
and Saturdays between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. (Saturday construction is 
limited to non-noise-generating activities only, such as interior painting), excluding the 
following holidays:   

New Year’s Day January 1st* 
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 3rd Monday in January 
Presidents’ Day 3rd Monday in February 
Memorial Day Last Monday in May 
Independence Day July 4th* 
Labor Day 1st Monday in September 
Thanksgiving Day 4th Thursday in November 
Following Thanksgiving Day Friday following Thanksgiving Day 
Christmas Day December 25th* 

*When a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the preceding Friday or following 
Monday, respectively, shall be observed as a legal holiday. 

When, based on required construction type or other appropriate reasons, it is necessary to 
do work outside the allowed construction hours, contractor shall contact the City to 
request a waiver from the above construction hours, using the procedure outlined in Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code §9.16.015 Construction Work at Night.  Contractor shall notify 
all residents within 300 feet of the parcel of intent to carry out said construction a 
minimum of 48 hours prior to said construction.  Said notification shall include what the 
work includes, the reason for the work, the duration of the proposed work and a contact 
number. 

4. Project Site Rules. No radios, music playback equipment, musical instruments, 
recreational drugs, or alcohol shall be used by workers while on the project site. 

5. Early Arrivals. If construction workers arrive at the project site before 8:00 a.m. 
Monday through Friday or before 9:00 a.m. Saturday, they shall remain in the area of 
actual construction, and away from any neighbors’ property lines. 

6. Construction Storage/Staging.  Construction vehicle/ equipment/ materials storage and 
staging shall be done on-site.  Materials storage and construction worker parking shall be 
prohibited on the northern section of the parking lot along and adjacent to the Las 
Encinas Road easement. The ‘northern’ section of the parking lot is defined to include all 
spaces north of the large landscaped island in the parking lot., but is prohibited in the 
northernmost section of the Museum parking lot.  No parking or storage shall be 
permitted within the public right-of-way, unless specifically permitted by the Public 
Works Director with a Public Works permit. 

7. Noise Control. All construction equipment used on the site, including trucks, shall be 
professionally maintained and fitted with standard manufacturers’ muffler and site 
activity silencing devices. Sound control devices and techniques, such as noise shields 
and blankets, shall be employed as needed to reduce the level of noise of all project 
development activity to surrounding residents consistent with the requirements of SBMC 
Section 9.16.025.C.   



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 13 
 

 

8. Portable and Stationary Equipment. When portable or stationary equipment, such as, 
but not limited to generators, air compressors and wood sawing stations are required on 
the project site, the equipment shall be located as far from the project boundaries with 
residences (other than those owned by the Museum) as possible. If it is necessary to 
locate portable/stationary equipment within 200 feet of the project perimeter, methods to 
provide noise shielding for that equipment shall be implemented. This may include but is 
not limited to: providing a two or three sided enclosure which is lined with a sound 
absorbing material between the equipment and the property line, or locating the 
equipment so that noise shielding is provided by existing or new structures located on the 
project site consistent with the requirements of SBMC 9.16.025.C. 

9. Noise Complaints and Resolution. Include on relevant signage a Museum-designated 
representative’s telephone number to address noise complaints. The Museum will include 
construction related complaints and methods of resolution in its annual reporting to the 
City. In response to verified complaints the City may require the applicant to implement a 
noise monitoring program. The noise monitoring program shall be designed and 
conducted to ensure that appropriate noise reduction and control measures are identified 
and implemented so that construction related noise levels at the property lines of sensitive 
receptors (residents) adjacent to the project site are consistent with the requirements of 
SBMC Section 9.16.025.C. 

4. Construction Parking.  During construction, free parking spaces for construction 
workers shall be provided on-site or off-site in a location subject to the approval of the 
Public Works Director.   

5.10. Nesting Birds.  Birds and their eggs nesting on or near the project site are protected 
under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act and pursuing, hunting, taking, capturing, killing, or 
attempt to do any of the above is a violation of federal and state regulations.  Tree 
removal/relocation/trimming activities shall not occur during nesting season (March 1 – 
July 1). If these activities must occur during this time, a qualified biologist shall conduct 
surveys to identify, no more than one week prior to the activity, active nests and nest 
holes. The biologist shall map the location of all active and inactive nests and nest holes 
in trees. A 300-foot radius, no-disturbance buffer shall be established around trees 
containing active nests and this buffer shall be maintained until the biologist has verified 
that young fledglings have left the nest. 

6.11. Storm Water Pollution Prevention.  A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan with 
appropriate erosion/sediment control devices will be implemented between the 
construction area and Mission Creek. An erosion and sediment control plan that satisfies 
City of Santa Barbara requirements will be prepared and included in the construction 
drawings of each project component.  Prior to the start of any demolition or construction 
activity within 100 feet of the topographic top of the creek bank, the perimeter of the 
work area shall be fenced and sediment and erosion control materials shall be installed to 
prevent demolition debris, soil, sediment, and other contaminates from falling or washing 
down into Mission Creek. 

7.12. Air Quality and Dust Control.  The following measures shall be shown on grading and 
building plans and shall be adhered to throughout grading, hauling, and construction 
activities:  



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 14 
 

 

a. During construction, use water trucks or sprinkler systems to keep all areas of 
vehicle movement damp enough to prevent dust from leaving the site. At a 
minimum, this should include wetting down such areas in the late morning and 
after work is completed for the day. Increased watering frequency should be 
required whenever the wind speed exceeds 15 mph. Reclaimed water should be 
used whenever possible. However, reclaimed water should not be used in or 
around crops for human consumption.  

b. Minimize amount of disturbed area and reduce on site vehicle speeds to 15 miles 
per hour or less.  

c. If importation, exportation and stockpiling of fill material is involved, soil 
stockpiled for more than two days shall be covered, kept moist, or treated with 
soil binders to prevent dust generation. Trucks transporting fill material to and 
from the site shall be tarped from the point of origin.  

d. Gravel pads shall be installed at all access points to prevent tracking of mud onto 
public roads.  

e. After clearing, grading, earth moving or excavation is completed, treat the 
disturbed area by watering, or revegetating, or by spreading soil binders until the 
area is paved or otherwise developed so that dust generation will not occur.  

f. The contractor or builder shall designate a person or persons to monitor the dust 
control program and to order increased watering, as necessary, to prevent 
transport of dust offsite. Their duties shall include holiday and weekend periods 
when work may not be in progress. The name and telephone number of such 
persons shall be provided to the Air Pollution Control District prior to land use 
clearance for map recordation and land use clearance for finish grading of the 
structure.  

g. All portable diesel-powered construction equipment shall be registered with the 
state’s portable equipment registration program OR shall obtain an APCD permit.  

h. Fleet owners of mobile construction equipment are subject to the California Air 
Resource Board (CARB) Regulation for In-use Off-road Diesel Vehicles (Title 13 
California Code of Regulations, Chapter 9, § 2449), the purpose of which is to 
reduce diesel particulate matter (PM) and criteria pollutant emissions from in-use 
(existing) off-road diesel-fueled vehicles. For more information, please refer to 
the CARB website at www.arb.ca.gov/msprog/ordiesel/ordiesel.htm.  

i. All commercial diesel vehicles are subject to Title 13, § 2485 of the California 
Code of Regulations, limiting engine idling time. Idling of heavy-duty diesel 
construction equipment and trucks during loading and unloading shall be limited 
to five minutes; electric auxiliary power units should be used whenever possible.  

8.13. Unanticipated Archaeological Resources Contractor Notification.  Standard 
discovery measures shall be implemented per the City Master Environmental Assessment 
throughout grading and construction:  Prior to the start of any vegetation or paving 
removal, demolition, trenching or grading, contractors and construction personnel shall 
be alerted to the possibility of uncovering unanticipated subsurface archaeological 



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 15 
 

 

features or artifacts.  If such archaeological resources are encountered or suspected, work 
shall be halted immediately, the City Environmental Analyst shall be notified and the 
Owner shall retain an archaeologist from the most current City Qualified Archaeologists 
List.  The latter shall be employed to assess the nature, extent and significance of any 
discoveries and to develop appropriate management recommendations for archaeological 
resource treatment, which may include, but are not limited to, redirection of grading 
and/or excavation activities, consultation and/or monitoring with a Barbareño Chumash 
representative from the most current City qualified Barbareño Chumash Site Monitors 
List, etc. 

If the discovery consists of possible human remains, the Santa Barbara County Coroner 
shall be contacted immediately.  If the Coroner determines that the remains are Native 
American, the Coroner shall contact the California Native American Heritage 
Commission.  A Barbareño Chumash representative from the most current City Qualified 
Barbareño Chumash Site Monitors List shall be retained to monitor all further subsurface 
disturbance in the area of the find.  Work in the area may only proceed after the 
Environmental Analyst grants authorization. 

If the discovery consists of possible prehistoric or Native American artifacts or materials, 
a Barbareño Chumash representative from the most current City Qualified Barbareño 
Chumash Site Monitors List shall be retained to monitor all further subsurface 
disturbance in the area of the find.  Work in the area may only proceed after the 
Environmental Analyst grants authorization. 

A final report on the results of the archaeological monitoring shall be submitted by the 
City-approved archaeologist to the Environmental Analyst within 180 days of completion 
of the monitoring and prior to any certificate of occupancy for the project. 

G. Prior to Certificate of Occupancy.  Prior to issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy, the 
Owner of the Real Property shall complete the following: 
1. Repair Damaged Public Improvements.  Repair any public improvements (curbs, 

gutters, sidewalks, roadways, etc.) or property damaged by construction subject to the 
review and approval of the Public Works Department per SBMC §22.60.  Where tree 
roots are the cause of the damage, the roots shall be pruned under the direction of a 
qualified arborist. 

2. Complete Public Improvements.  For the phase of the project that includes public 
improvements, those improvements as shown in the public improvement plans or 
building plans, shall be completed. 

3. Noise Measurements.  For the phase of the project that includes the exterior speaker 
system, submit a final report from a licensed acoustical engineer, verifying that the sound 
produced by the exterior speaker system does not exceed ambient exterior noise levels by 
more than 2 dBA at any property boundary with a residential use.  In the event the noise 
is not within acceptable levels, additional measures shall be recommended by the noise 
specialist and implemented subject to the review and approval of the Building and Safety 
Division and the Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC). Such measures may include 
volume reduction, relocation, reorientation, removal of speaker(s), or limiting the use of 
the speaker system to emergency announcements only. 



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 16 
 

 

4. Biological Monitoring.  For any phase of the project that includes planting of new native 
trees, submit a plan and contract with a qualified biologist acceptable to the City for the 
five-year monitoring period. 

H. General Conditions. 
1. Prior Conditions.  These conditions shall supersede the conditions identified in Planning 

Commission Resolutions 33-1979, 10-1980, 002-89, 025-91, 054-92 and Substantial 
Conformance Determinations dated April 9, 2007, September 16, 2008, and November 
12, 2009. 

2. Compliance with Requirements.  All requirements of the city of Santa Barbara and any 
other applicable requirements of any law or agency of the State and/or any government 
entity or District shall be met.  This includes, but is not limited to, the Endangered 
Species Act of 1973 [ESA] and any amendments thereto (16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq.), the 
1979 Air Quality Attainment Plan, and the California Code of Regulations. 

3. Approval Limitations.   
a. The conditions of this approval supersede all conflicting notations, specifications, 

dimensions, and the like which may be shown on submitted plans. 

b. All buildings, roadways, parking areas and other features shall be located 
substantially as shown on the plans approved by the Planning Commission. 

c. Any deviations from the project description, approved plans or conditions must be 
reviewed and approved by the City, in accordance with the Planning Commission 
Guidelines.  Deviations may require changes to the permit and/or further 
environmental review.  Deviations without the above-described approval will 
constitute a violation of permit approval.   

4. Litigation Indemnification Agreement.  In the event the Planning Commission 
approval of the Project is appealed to the City Council, Applicant/Owner hereby agrees to 
defend the City, its officers, employees, agents, consultants and independent contractors 
(“City’s Agents”) from any third party legal challenge to the City Council’s denial of the 
appeal and approval of the Project, including, but not limited to, challenges filed pursuant 
to the California Environmental Quality Act (collectively “Claims”).  Applicant/Owner 
further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City and the City’s Agents from any 
award of attorney fees or court costs made in connection with any Claim. 

Applicant/Owner shall execute a written agreement, in a form approved by the City 
Attorney, evidencing the foregoing commitments of defense and indemnification within 
thirty (30) days of being notified of a lawsuit regarding the Project.  These commitments 
of defense and indemnification are material conditions of the approval of the Project.  If 
Applicant/Owner fails to execute the required defense and indemnification agreement 
within the time allotted, the Project approval shall become null and void absent 
subsequent acceptance of the agreement by the City, which acceptance shall be within the 
City’s sole and absolute discretion.  Nothing contained in this condition shall prevent the 
City or the City’s Agents from independently defending any Claim.  If the City or the 
City’s Agents decide to independently defend a Claim, the City and the City’s Agents 
shall bear their own attorney fees, expenses, and costs of that independent defense. 



RECOMMENDED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
2559 PUESTA DEL SOL 
MARCH 24, 2015 
PAGE 17 
 

 

 



CORRESPONDENCE FROM THE APPELLANT 
  





















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Agenda Item No.  20 
File Code No.  110.03 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administrative Services 
 
SUBJECT: Setting Geographic Boundaries For District Elections 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Receive a report from Doug Johnson, President of National Demographics 

Corporation, regarding the results of the City public outreach efforts related to 
district elections and drawing geographic boundaries for electoral districts; 

B. Hold a public hearing pursuant to California Elections Code Section 10010 to 
consider a proposal to establish district boundaries;  

C. Provide direction to the City Attorney and the City Administrator on establishing 
electoral district boundaries; and 

D. Consider adoption of A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara 
Establishing Single Member Districts for the Election of Councilmembers. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Since April 29, 2014, the City Council has been actively considering the merits of 
proposing by-district elections (hereinafter “district elections”) to Santa Barbara’s 
electorate.  Under a by-district election system, as considered, the Mayor would 
continue to be elected at-large, but the City would be divided into six geographic 
districts for City Councilmember elections, with each district electing one 
Councilmember.   
 
In October 2014, Council directed staff to prepare a ballot measure for the Council 
Election in November 2015, with district elections commencing, if approved by voters, in 
November 2017. As envisioned in that process, an independent commission would be 
formed to draw the geographical boundaries of the six initial council districts.    
 
However, the City was also being sued to compel district elections in Banales, et al. v. 
City of Santa Barbara, SBSC Case No.1468167.   Due to a subsequent ruling of the 
judge in that case, and a proposed legal settlement, district elections will now begin with 
the November 2015 ballot, leaving a very short window for making decisions regarding 
geographic boundaries of six new electoral districts.  On February 3, 2015, Council 



Council Agenda Report 
Setting Geographic Boundaries For District Elections 
March 24, 2015 
Page 2 

 

approved an expedited public outreach process to collect as much public input as 
possible within a short period of time, and approved engaging National Demographics 
Corporation (NDC) to create district input tools and compile the results.  
The City held the first Civic Engagement meeting and public hearing on districting on 
Saturday, February 28, 2015, at the Faulkner Gallery to review the issue of district 
elections and kick off the public input process. The more than 100 attendees received 
an introduction to the following three ways that members of the public could provide 
input on the district boundaries: 
 

• Weigh in on 3 example maps created by NDC; 
• Use an online tool to draw and submit an alternative map; and/or 
• Use pen-and-paper to draw and submit an alternative map. 

  
These tools were made available on the City’s web site over the following two weeks, 
with additional outreach to the public to encourage their use.  The response from the 
public was strong. More than 135 members of the public created user accounts for the 
online tool, and more than 16 alternative maps were submitted, including an additional 
map from the plaintiffs in the related litigation.  Email comments and other informal input 
were also accepted by staff and forwarded to NDC.  Public input received has been 
consolidated and posted on the City’s website throughout the process. 
 
The results of the public input during the first weeks of the input process were presented 
at a second Civic Engagement Workshop and public hearing at 6:00 p.m. on March 18, 
2015, in the Council Chamber at City Hall.  The public was given an opportunity to 
comment on these results and provide additional input at that meeting. 
 
This is the third public hearing on this matter.  The results from the two Civic 
Engagement Workshops, the online public input tools, and other public input received 
during this process will be presented to Council by NDC, and the public will have 
another opportunity to provide additional comment on districting before the decision 
setting district boundaries is made.  The Council will need to make decisions about 
district boundaries so that this can be presented to the judge in the court case by the 
end of the day on Monday, March 30, 2015.  A special City Council meeting has been 
scheduled for Monday, March 30th at 4:00 p.m. to allow additional consideration, if 
necessary. 
 
Note: A written report from National Demographics Corporations on the results of the 
public outreach effort will be available for public review in the City Clerk’s Office and on 
the City website at http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/gov/vote/district_elections.asp or by 
Clicking Here. 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Director of Administrative Services 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/gov/vote/district_elections.asp
http://civicaweb.santabarbaraca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?BlobID=50344

	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.DOC
	9.DOC
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.PDF
	13.DOC
	14.PDF
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.DOC
	22.DOC
	23.PDF
	24.PDF
	25.PDF
	26.PDF
	27.PDF
	28.PDF
	29.PDF
	30.PDF
	31.PDF
	32.DOC
	Mayor
	Bendy White
	MARCH 24, 2015
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS
	agenda 3-24-15 last page.pdf
	MARCH 24, 2015
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS




